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IN DEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Insolvency resolution professional of Indosolar Limited (Company under CIRP)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of Indosolar Limited,

company under CIRP ('the CompanyJ, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March

31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),

the Statement of cash flows and the staterment of changes in equity for the year then

ended, and notes to accounts, including a $ummary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatrcy information (herein after referred tcl as "Financial Statements').

We do not express an opinion on the Financial Statements. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have not been

able to obtairr sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit

opinion.

Basis for Disr:laimer of OPinion

We were appointed as auditors of the Company after March 31, 2019 and thus could not

obserye the counting of physical inventories at the beginning and end of the year.

Inventory records were not provided to us for checking. These were not physically

verified by us.

There is a diffi:rence of Rs. 283.80 lakh in the value of closing stock as stated in audited

balance sheet for the year ended 31't March 201t1 and books of accounts produced

before us with a corresponding difference in value of net fixed assets.

Accordingly, \ re were unable to satisfy ourselves [r1 alternative means concerning the

inventory quantities held at March 31, 2018i and March 31,2019 and valuation thereof.

Gross btock arnd net block of fixed assets as per books are inconsistent with data

provided in Fixed Asset register. As a result of this, we are unable to verify the written

down value of fixed assets sold during ths r/ear and rr:sultant Profit/Loss.

There is a difference of Rs. 283,80 lakh in net fixed assets in the audited balance sheet

for tlre year ended 31't March 2018 and books of arccounts produced before us with a
corresponding difference in value of closing stock.
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The Company has a net carrying value of Plant & Machinery of Rs. 8075.61 lakh, (ii)
CVVIP of Plant & Machinery Rs. 8,298.55 lakh and (iii) Buildings Rs. 4944,77 lakh as at
March 31, 2019. The management had recognized an impairment loss of Rs. 42,8L9.L2
lakh during the year based on value in use as on 30.019.2018.

The impairment loss in Plant & Machinery and CWIP was based on fair value less cost of
sales (realizabrle value) determined by a registered valuer as on 30.09.2018 and for
impairment in case of building the registered valuer report as on 29.03.2018 was
referred. Further, the cornpany has not done impairrment test and not booked resultant
impairment los;s as on 31.03.2019.

Thus we are unable to comment on the adequacy of the impairment loss recognized
during the year ended lvlarch 31, 2019 and the consequential impact, if any, on the
accompanying statement,

The Company' has plarrt and machinery under installation, disclosed under CWIP,
aggregating to Rs. 26,31;4.8 lakh in respect of whir:h management has recognized an
impairment los;s of Rs. 1t1,056.14 lakh during the year ended 31st March, 20tg based on
recoverable value of the assets as on 30th September determined using value in use

method and is therefot'e dependent on the various factors considered in making
projections by' the management. In the absence rcf sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence with respect to the uncertainty underlying the assumptions particularly the
timing of expected imposition of anti/safeguard durty and installation of Line -C and
commencement of its commercial production, used in the long term projections, we are
unable to conrment on adequacy of the impairmerrt loss recognized during the year
ended 31st March,2019t and the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying
statement.

Further, the company ha:; not done impairment test and not booked resultant impairment
loss as on 31.03.2019.

We were unable to corrfirm or verify balances of accounts receivable and accounts
payables inclurJed in the Balance Sheet of total amount of Rs.14.53 lakh and Rs.8570,75
lakh respectiverly as at Merrch 31, 2019.

Balances of Ul3I, Bank o1' Baroda, Corporation Bank and ARCIL are not reconciling with
the statement provided. Interest on borrowing in respect of facilities from Corporation
ban( Union bank of India and Bank of Baroda has been booked only till September and
Interest on loern taken or,,er by ARCIL not booked. Being the company under CIRP, there
is difference irr total interest/ penal interest / expenses / others of approximately Rs.

92L87 lakhs pr:ftains to this year or earlier years between claims admitted by Resolutlon
Professional and balances; in books.

Input tax credit claimed under GST are not reconciling with books of accounts.

The Company (being an EOU) has not been able to meet its commitment under the
Foreign Trade Policy on l.he basis of which the Company imported cerl.ain raw material,
stores and spares and machineries without payment of custom duty. As on 31st March,
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2019 the Company's NFE: is positive by Rs. 19,140.38 lakh without cons;idering the import
value of amortization of Line-C. However, after amortisation of value of line C NEF
becomes negative by Rs. 29,624.58. The company is not able to achieve positive NFE
during the stipulated time; the company would be liable to duties and penalties payable
in accordancer with Notification No. 5212003 Cus. Dated 31.03.2003. Presently we are
unable to assess upon the possible impact if any on the accompanying r;tatement.

B. In the matter of Company's claim for eligibility of capital subsidy under SIP scheme of
Govt. of Indi;r. The uncrertainty exists with regard to its quantum and receipt of claim
pending its appraisal by Depaftment of Electronics & Information Technology (DEIT). In
the absence of the reasonable assurance, the management has not recognized the claim.

9. Most of the vouchers and other supporting documents are not made iavailable to us for
verification.

10. Company has not complied with companies act with respect to Secretarial Audit, cost
Audit and Listing Agreement. Further, in the absence of Secretarial Audit we cannot
comment on cletailed cornpliances of Companies Act provisions.

11.. Company is under CIRP as explained in Note 45 of Notes to the Financial Statements.

12. The non adherence of IND AS as explained in Note 46 of Notesr to the Financial
Statements.

As a result of above matters, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustments might har,re been found necessary in respect of assets and liabilities
in the Balance Sheet, and the corresponding elements making up the Statement
of Profit and Loss and (lash Flow Statement.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to
Note No. 15(1X c ) of the financial statements regarding revocation of One Time
Settlement ('OTS) Scheme from Union Bank of India (Bank).Consequently, Interest
waived amounting to Rs. L7,389.48 lakh upto 31.03.2017 is to be reversed and (ii)
interest for the interest free period i.e. April 2017 to March 2018 (amount rnot
ascertained) is; become prayable, (iii) The bank has also withdrawn other concessions i.e.
lower rate of interest charged on outstanding amount for the period from April 2018
onwards, consequential interest need to be booked (amount not asceftained) riiv)
Preference Shares becorne due and payable immediately.

Note No. 9 of' the finanr:ial statements regarding inventories. Closing Stock of finished
goods and raw material l'ras been taken as nil.

Note No. 45 rc'garding verification and admission of claims by RP. Pending finalization of
resolution plan, the impact of such claims if any that may also have not been considered
in the preparallion of the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period"
These matters were addressed in the context ofour audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea separate opinion on
these matLers.

Except for tht-' matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion and Material
unceftainty' related to going concern, we could not determine whether there are otherkey
audit mattr:rs to communicate in our report.

Material Unc,ertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to

l. Note No. aa A (iv) of notes to the financial statements relating to Going Concern.2. Note No. 45 relation to corporate Insolvency Resolution process

In view of atrove uncertainties we are also unable to comment on the ability of
the Company to continue as a going concern and consequential classification and
adjustment tr: the accompanying financial statements, if any that might have
been necessary had the financial statements being prepared under li[uidatipn
basis. The extent of the effect on the resultant adjustments to the accumulated
losses, assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2019 is presently not ascertainable.

Information other than financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
We have not obtained the other information comprises of the financial or non-financial
information (other than financial statements and the auditor's report thereon) included in ian
entity's annual report.

Our opinion on [he financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any forrn of assurance/conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the.other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiallly
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or othenruise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the dalle
of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this othr-.r
information, are required to repoft that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Managemenll and Those Charged with Governance's Responsibility for the
Financial Startements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Compianies Act 2013 ('the Act) with respect to the preparation of thr:se
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial positiron,
financial peformance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified unrCer

section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reason able
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that tvere operating for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give

a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing lthe
Companyt ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relal[ed
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managemr-.nt
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realir;tic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finanr:ial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance/ but is not a guarantee that audit conducted in accordance vlrith

Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exis;ts.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregerte, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As paft of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risk, and obtain audit e,uidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opiniott. l-he risk of not detecting a material misstatement .resulting from fraud is
higher than for onel resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgerry,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are als<l responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal finanr:ial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls"

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceftainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a rgoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregiate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the malters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matt€rs in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circurnstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Repoft on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auclitor's Repoft) Order, 2016 ('the Order') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of sectionl43 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

As required by' section 143 (3) of the Act, we repoft that:

As described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we sought but were unable
to obtain all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpc,se of our audit;

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we are unable to state whether proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we are unable to state whether the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and

Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books

of account;

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we are unable to state whether the aforesaid financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards uncler Section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules
issued there under;

The matter described in the Basil; for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

As informed by the management, neither written representations has been received from
the directors irs on March 3t, 20L'9, and nor taken on record by the Board of Directors
regarding disclualiflcation of directors as on March 3L, 2019, from being appointed as a
director in terrns of section t64(2) rcf the Act. So we are unable to comment upon this.

Statutory payments made to authorities (ESI and PF) during the year 2018-19 are
inconsistent with the salary amounl. booked for the year.

TDS not dedur:ted on salaries and professional fees amounting to Rs. 71.3 lakhs and TCS

not paid/collected on scrap sale of lRs. 2.7 lakhs.

The company has not complied wit,h the following provisions of Companies Act 2013 and
Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure
Requirementslt Regulations, 2015

i. Appointment of qualified (3ompany Secretary as the compliance officer as
per Regulation 6.

ii. Submission of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report.

s)

h)

i)
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iii. Submission of Certificate of pr3S (Regulation 40(10)).
iv' sutrmission of unaudited quarterly financial result arong for limited review report forthe quaiter ended December and March zorgi Reguration 33)
v' Filling ol' BEN -2, MSME Form-l, Active INC - 22A and F,orms for directorsresignatir:ns.

vi. Appointnrent of internar auditor (sec 138 of the companies Act, 2013).
vii' Holding of minimum number of meetings of board. (sec 173(1) of the companiesAct, 2013i.)

viii' conrstitution of Audit committee, Nomination and Remuneration committee,stakeholclers Relationship committee, Risk management comrmittee and Sharetransfer committee' (Sec 777 and 178 of the companies Act, 2013 and Regulation19,',20,2:t and 40 of SEBI(LODR).

ix' secretarietl audit for the year 2018-19 (Regulation 24A and Sec 204 of theCompaniers Act, 2013.) \ J

x' Application for cIRP filed on 23'd october, 201g and thereafter 3 independentdirectors namely Mr. vidyut vora, Ms.vinati bev and Mr. Gautam singh Kuthari hassubnritted their resignation to company on 26ti N;;;;";;: However suchdirectors l\ave not filed form DIR 11 with MCA and company have also not filedform DIR 12' consequently the company nas ieft with one director only and noboarrl met-'ting have been called or treio tnerearter. Further financial statements areapproved and signed by only one director Mr. H. R. Gupta.
xi. cost Audit for the year 2018-19 (Sec 148 of the companies Act, 2013)
Fufther' in the arbsence of Secretarial Audit we cannot comment on detailed compliancesof companiies Act provisions and Regulations of securities and Exchange Board of India.

i) The reserv'ation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connectedtherewith are as stated in the Basis for oisctaimer oi opinion paragraph above.
k) with respect to lthe adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, ,ur.i lo o* separaterepoft in "ltnnexure 8". our report expresses a disclaimer opinion on the adequacy andthe operating effectiveness of the company's internal financial controls over financialreporting; and internar audit has arso not been taken piaceo by company.
l) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors, Report in accordancewith Rule 1'L of the companies (Audit and Auditoo) nri.r,z014, in our opinion and to thebest of our infornration and according to the explanations given to us:

i' Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer ofopinion paragraph, we are unable to state wtreiher the company has disclosed theimpact rlf pending litigations on its financial position in its financial'stailments;

ii



ii.

iii.

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state 'whether the Company has made
provision, as required under the applicable law on accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts;

There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company"

For A.K.G. & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
FRN OO26BBN

Place: Delhi
Date: 19-Feb-2020
UDIN : 200B7BB9AAMBK6053

. ..,; . r t t, ! .a

CA. HARVINDER SINGH
Paftner

M. No. 087889



Annexure A lo the Independent Auditor's Report

On the basis ofsuch checks as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanationsgiven to us during the course of our audit, we repoft that:

1. In respect of ils fixed assets

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
examination of books and records, the company has not maintained the records,
however the same was not showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets. Also,Gross block and net block of fixed assets as per books
are inconsis;tent with data provided in Fixed Asset register

(b) There is not sufficient staff to carry out physical verification of fixed assets and there
is no docunrent on record to reflect the physical verification done of fixed assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company does not have any
immovable properties which are freehold and held in the name of company as at the
balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties taken on lease, Lease hold
improvemernts have been disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the
lease agreLsment are in the name of the company. However supplement lease
agreement as mentioned in lease deed are not on record.

2. Inventory records have not been provided to us for verification.

3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to the companies/firms, limited
liability partnership or other parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of
the companiesr Act, 2013.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not given loans, guarantees, security or made any investments which need
to comply with the section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

5. According to the information and explanations giv'en to us, the Company has not
accepted any rJeposit during the year within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. The Company is required to maintain cost records which have been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of cornpanies act, 2013.
However, no cost records have been provided to us for verification. Cost audit was not
conducted for the year 2018-19.

!.
l{



7. (a)According to the records of the company, the company is genenally not reguiar indepositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and seruice tax, Excise Duty,Provident Fundl, ESI and other statutory dues applicable over the company.

The company has not deposited ESI & pF on salary of Rs. 62,,3g,544 paid afterSeptember 2018.

(b)According to the information given to us and as per the books of accounts produced
before us, the company has following dues relating icl Goods and service tax, sales tax,income tax, cuistom tax, excise duty, cess as at 31st March,201g tlrat have not been
deposited on account of dispute:

Further, in the matter of company's claim for eligibllity of capital s;ubsidy under slp
scheme of Govt. of India. The uncertainty exists wiih regard d id;r,rrtrm and receiptof claim pending its appraisal by Department of Electronics & Infornration Technology
(DErD.

Bl' Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the comprany has defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial iinstitution or bankor debenture holders. (Refer Note 45 of notes to the financial statementsj-

9' The company has not raised any money by way of initial public deposit offer, furtherpublic offer, debt instrument or term loans during the year.

10' According to the information and explanations given to us, based upon the auditprocedures performed and representations made ui ttre managemen! we report that nofraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported durin-g .orrr. of our audit

1'1' In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the companyhaspaid/ provided manageriil remuneration in accordance with the rerquisite approvalsmandated by ther provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the nct.

1'l' The company is rrot a Nidhi company and hence this clause is not applicable.

[]' In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to urs, all transactions
with related partles are in compliance with sections 177 and t-Bg of companies Act, 20:t3and are disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

PARTICULAR As at March 31,
201,9

(Rs. In lakhs)
uury rorgone oemand ot customs pending settlement

1,193.43
var (A.Y. Zt;,lt*-rt,

Total
4.3s

1797.78
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L4" company has not made any ;lreferential allotment or private placement of shares or full,yor partly converrtible or debentures during the year.

15' Based on the representation given by the management, the company has not enteredinto any non-ci:sh transactions with the directors 6r other persons connected to directorsand hence the pro'vision of section 192 of the companies act is not applicable.
16' The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank ottIndia, 1934.

Place: Delhi
Date: 19-Feb-202:0

For A.K.G. & ASSOCIAIES
Chartered Accounternts

FRN. OO26B8N

i'. r., r ..,.:'.\.',' tl
i

CA. Harvinder Singli
paftner

M. No. 087[JB9



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor,s Report

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 1431of the Companiies Act, 2013 f,the Act,) -'---- \'

we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of rndosolarLimited, compan)/.under CIRP ['the CompanyJ u, on:t$ tqarcf, zoi|in conjunction

[jl:."" 
audit of lLhe flnancial siatements of ir,e.on''puny for the year ended on rhat

Management's Responsibitity for rnternat Financiar contrors
The companytr management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internalfinancial controls based on the internal control ouur nnir.ial reporting criteria establishedby the company considering the essential components or internal control stated in theGuidance Note on /\udit of tnternal Financial controts over Financial Reporting issued bythe Institute of rlhartered Accountants of India (.I-A'I,i'"' 

I rrrqrrLror rtrpunt

These responsiLrilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequateinternal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly andefficient conduct 
. 
of its business, incrudinf, uJr',.r.*. to company,s poricies, thesafeguarding of its, assets, the preventio, 'uno o.f,.iion of rrauds'rnd' urrors, theaccuracy and comprleteness of the accounting records,- and the timely preparation ofreliable financial infcrrmation, as requireo unaeittre Co*p.ni., Act, 2013.

Auditors' Respronsibility

our responsibilit'y is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controlsover financial reporting based on our audit. we conaucied our audit in accordance withthe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial crrtri,rr over Financial Reporting (the"Guidance Note'l) and the Standards on Auditing, issued- by ICAI and prescribed undersection 143(10) of the companies Act, 2013, io *'" i,rtent applicable to an audit ofinternal financial controls, both applicabte to rh .rJifoil'internat'rininciaicontrols. and,both issued by the Irrstituie or 0rirteild Accountants of India.

Those standard:; and the Guidance Note require that we compry with ethicalrequirements and plan and perform the audit td outrin reasonable assurance aboutwhether adequate internal financial .ontrorr ou.r n"nffii reporting was established andmaintained and if such controls operated effectivery in uii ,uterial respects.

our audit involves; performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal financial 
. 
con-troti system over financial reporting and their operatingeffectiveness' our arrdit of internal financial controls or.i fin.,i.iJ ;pil;g-,;iiri:;

"jr
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obtaining an unclerstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,assessing the risk :Ehat a material weakness exists, inJ testing and evaluating the designand operating effectiveness of internal control based on tre assessed risk. Theprocedures selected depend on the auditor's irogr.nt- including the assessment of therisk of material misstatement of the Ind AS 
-fina-nciat 

itatements, whether due to fraudor error.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate toprovide a basis for our audit opinion on the compiny;u int.rnal financial controls systemover financial reporting.

Meaning of rnternar Financiat contrors over Financial Reporting

A company's internral financial control.over.financial reporting is a process designed toprovide reasonable assurance regarding ilre- ieriaoiria, or financial reporting and thepreparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance withgenerally accepted accounting principles. n .orp.ny'f int"rn.l financial control overflnancial reporting includes tnose policies .rd ;il;ures yrai"tli-'p.,tuin to themaintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, iccurately and fairly reflect thetransactions anrl dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonableassurance that transactions are recorded as necessary-to permit preparation of Ind ASfinancial statemenk; in accordance with g"n.rullt-..i.pt.o accounting principles, andthat receipts anrl expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance withauthorizations ol' management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonableassurance regarrJinc; prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, ordisposition of tl-re company's assets that could r',are a material effect on the Ind ASfi nancial statemernts,,

rnherent Limitations of rnternal Financiat controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,including the pclssihility of collusion or improp", ,unug"ment override of controls,material misstatements due to error or fraud ,.v o..rilna not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal t'inancial controls over financialreporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control overfinancial reporting mav.!9c9me inaiequate because of changes in conditions, or that thedegree of complierncel with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

Due to insufficient staff and availability of relevant records, in our opinion, the companydoes not has an adequate internal finincial.controts iyrtu, or.r. financial reporting andsuch internal financial controls over financial.reporting';;;. not operating effectively asat 31* March, 2019. we have norbeen provided witli the internal control over financial

11,



reporting criteria established by the company consicrering the essentiar components oFinternal control stiated in the criirr.J rv..[e.inililitnternat Finan,ciar contrors overFinancial Repoftinq issued by the inrtiirtu of chartere,J Aclountants of India,

Place: Delhi
Date: 19-Feb-2020

For A.K.G. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

FRN. OO26BBN

"i r r .,(.,",' ''r'l

CA. Haruinder Singh
partner

M, No. 0B7BB9



lndosollar [imited
Ba.lance Sheet as at 31 Mart:h, 21019
{All amr:unts in Rupees in lal:h, unLss otherwise stated)

Particulars
Notes As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 201gAssets

1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant & Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Other intangible assets
(d) Financial assets

(i)loans
iii) Crther financial assets

{e) Deferred tax assets (Net)
(f) Other non-current assets
Total non current assets

2 Current iassets
(a) lnventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances (other thern cash & cash equivalents)(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) lnstrurnents entirelv equity in nature
(b) Other equity
TotalEqurity

Liabilities
1 Non-currernt liabilities

(a ) Financial liabilities
Borrowings

(b) Provisions
Total non current liabilities

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financiial liabilities

(i) Borro,wings
(ii) Trade payables

(iii) Other financial tiabitities
(b) Other current liabilities
[c) Provisions
Total current liabilities

'roTAL EqUrlry AND LIAB|L|TIES

----:=-juo1 

r.osr.oz_23,S135.15 
-og,gqq.sr

4(a)
4(b)
a(c)

5
6
7
8

tl5,,130.99
8,;298 65

1,2.79

'"t57.69

537.:34

1.4.53
e'7.02

405.11

42,636.89
25,747.9)l

1.7.2e;

403.9C|
87.21

2,665.67

291.30
292.46
3s2.40

4.77

9

10
LL
12
5
6
8

.55.84

, 1i?3+ s21.ozt,9tl9.Zg --4,42r.56 -

13(aXb) at7,2ct6.71 37,206.7I13(b)
L4 - (1:15,355.211)--T#fr#., ##t

15 and 16 58,4.3itL7 4##
18 3,5't.02 3,546.2019 8,570.75 6,237.0620 110,561..10 79,524.2027 693;.70 206.68L7 -- lrra##--------rs+$#

Siummary of significant accounting pr:licies
llote 1 to 4il form an integral part of the balance
As per our report attached

F:or A.K.G & ASSOCIATES
C'h a rte re d Acco u n ta nt s
lCAl Firm registration number: 0CtZ6ggN

r\, , i.'\,, ),r,r,l

CA. HARVINDER SINGH
P;a rtner
tVlembership No. : 087g89

Place: Delhi
Date : 19-Feb-2020

2&3
sheet of the company.

For and on behalf of the
lndosolar Limited
i: i

\'\..'i.,,,1.
H.R. Gupta

Board ctf D,irectors of

.--i->='-

--43t-
--mn$^eQ Record

Gulshai'caba

Resolution professionat
Reg n no : I BB t/l pA-00L/t 

F,_

t 0054B/2017_18/1Os7I

Managing Director
DIN:00297722 /-'
,1,. (

r 1ll'n
|*, 1.{.,".-r'-(a,- !-

nhdqdlKumar A*:arwal
Chief Fhancial Officer
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lndosr:lar Limited
Cl N: L:t8101DL2OO5pLC134B79
Staternent of profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2019(.All anrounts in Rupees in lakh, ,.,nt"r, oit,"i*ise stated)

orn,.:,t::_-- Notes Foith-evearena;.t3@

lncomrg
Revenue from operations
Other incorne
Total lncome (Al

Expensres
Cost of material consumed
Purchase of stock in trade
changer in inventories of fini:;hed goods, stock in trade and workEmplol,ee benefits expense
Financer costs
Depreciation and amortisati()n el:pense
0ther expenses

Total Expenses (B)

Profitl(Loss,l for the period before finance eosts,

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A_B)
Exceptional items Iprofit/(Loss)] (refer note Ai)'
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Tax exprrnse
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit/(t.oss) after tax (net)

Other Comprehensive lncome/(loss)
A (i) ltems that will not be re,:lassifiLd to profit or loss

-Remeasurements of net de{'ined benefit plans

!i)j.l.onl. tax relating to items that will *iU" ,".frrrified toB (i) lterns that will be reclassified to p.otiiorltos
(ii),lnco^nre tax relating to items_thert will Ue rl,:iassified to profit
Other Cormprehensive lncome/(loss)

Total Comprerhensive lncomeT/(loss)

Earning per eiquity share (EpS) in Rs.
- Basic

22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30

-_2 
9p.42__.-.-___43 1 . 1 51,61rc

7,32"2.36 37,4:12.37

1",742:".0,1

92.98
515.39
455.99

5,093.04
2,41.3.691
1,581.921

(9,870,24)
(6,410.96)

(16,281.20)

t..32

_ (s2.so1iorc

5,77 11.55

___________5-

27,51'7.99
4,4Ct1_.94

1,910.30
7,457.67
5,351.94
2,810.58
4,203.34

11,2stiQ3___ -----Z rJ5-
(9,68i!.18) (9,870.241

(9,582:.18)
(42,879t.121
(52,501.30)

31

32

uted

Summary of slgnificant accounting policies

Note 1 to 48 form an integral part c,f the balan,:e

As per our report attached

For A.K.G & ASSOCTATES
Ch o rte re d' Acco u nto nts
lCAl Firm registration number: 0026ggN

;. r,.'l r,
CA. HARV]INDER SINGH '

Pa rtner
Membership No.:0g7gg9

Place: Delhi
Date ; L9-lFeb-11020

2&3

sheet ofthe company.

H.R. Gupta
Managing Direr:tor

';) (l c
r Agarrfual

Chief Fforancial rlficer

For.dnd. on behslf of the Board of Directors oI
lndosolar Limited

t ->?:'=='--- \

(4.44)
4.44

\d-\ =.-
Ieaen-}qgecoro
Gulshan 6dba

Resolution professional
Reg n no : I B Bl/l pA-001/l p-

P00s48/2017_18/10s78

(74.17)
74.tl

(
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lndosolar Limilted
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 Marr:h, 2019
(All amounts tn Ruoees in lakh, unless otherwise s;tated)

--==r*-:--iri;- 

31 Marcill019 31 March 2018
Loss before tax as per statemenrr of profit and Loss (52,501.30) u6,21r.2olAdjustments fctr:
Depreciation and Amortisation E;<pense 2,4L3,.69 2,g10.5glnterest Expenses
rnterest income 5,093.04 5,,221j3
provision for doubtfur debts writl:en back (52 '39) 079.26l
Provision for doubtful debts tgg-.61 $3.47)

Exceptional ltems 
e vvrrlLt;rr urr 2t'60

-Waiver of lnterest on loans
-lmpairment Losses of property, I)lant & Equipment
-Gain on modification of loan due to fair valuatio n of 1,% OCCRPS
Bad debts writt,-in off
Demurrage/detentioil charges
U-nrealized Foreign Exchange Rater Difference (Gain) / Loss (Net)
(Gain) / Loss on Sale of property, plant and Equipnrent (net)
Provisions/Liabilities no longer rerluired written back
Amortised ancillarv c<lst of arranging the borrowings

Operating profit before working r:apital changes

Movements in \Morking Capital :
(lncrease)/decrerase in Trade Receivables
(lncrease)/decrerase in lnventories
(lncrease)/decrerase ir Other finarcial assets and Other assets
lncrease/(decrease) in Trade pavables
lncrease/(decrease) in Other liabilities and provisic,ns

Cash used from operations
Direct taxes (paid)/refund receiverj
Net cash generated from operatirrg activities
B, Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on Property, plant and Equipment, including capital work inlmapirment Losses of rjWlp
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and Equipment
Movement in Fixed Deposits with llanks
lnterest received
Net cash used in investing activitir:s

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue ol share capital
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) Long tenm borrowirrgs
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) Short term borrowings
lnterest paid
Net cash used in financing activitiers

Net increase in ciash and cash equivalents
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Add: Exchange loss/(gain) on foreign currency in hand
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprisers:
Cash in hand
Balances with scheduled banks

Notes:
(a) The above cash flow statement has been preparerd uncler the "lndirect Method" as siet out in the lndian Accounting standard - 7 cashFlow Statements specified under section 133 of the ,companies Act, 2013.
(b) Note 1 to 48 form an integral pa rt of the balance sheet of the company.
As per our report ,attached

For A.K.G & ASSOCTATES
Chortered Accountonts
lCAl Firm registration number: 0O26ggN

.ll .r , I ' . i , ,

CA. HARVINDER SINGH
Partner
Membership No.:087889

Place: Delhi
Date : 1.9-Feb-2020

42,819.1,2

60.18

3.66
10 39

{.248 
__4s)

(1,580.89)

(s85.68)
2,1,28.2-/

180.94
2,333.69

769.36

3,244.69

(2,337.136)

23.33
(2.,71)

{22s.46l,

292.46

(7s,211,.72],
30,700,00
(9,077,921

13.2t

64.07

'32.84

(2,033.94)

830.12
998.t17

869.:19
3,432.99

(1,167.6s)

2,928.78

(1,204.)t5)

242.Ct0

1372.0'7l.

664.5.3

33.t12 rOZ.2g

-------1E7ftrlta (8ooi;I

(1e7.8s) (4s7.30)10.8i2. 0',716J5i(see.eS) ' 
i32o.2i

--EIE6i1, e,4s4.z7l

67.01 292.46

0.12 2.31)

lglgnl on. pelotf of the Boord of Directors of
lndosolar Limited

,|

1t
' _---,!

\,r.-- \-'z--'ctor /,. Ta-R-e.irbqRecord

( GutshanBaba
'f'r\

\s-{"wat Resolution professional
Officer Regn no: tBBl/tpA-oo1/tp-

P 0 0 5 4 8// 2 0 1 7 - 1 I / 109 7 I
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lndosolar Limited
Statement of Changes in lEquity for the y,ear ended 31 March, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Iakh, unless othr:rwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 ear:h issued,
As at 1st April20t7
lncrease/(decrease) durinlg the year
As at 31st March 2018
lncrease/(decrease) durin5l the year
As at 31st March 2019

subscribed and fully paid (refer note 13(a))

lnstruments entirely equity in nature

Compulsorily (lonvertible preference Shares (refer note 13(b))
As at 1st April 2017
lncrease/(decrr:ase) during the year
As at 31st March 2018
!ncrease/{decrease) during the vear
As at 31st Mar,ch 2019

C Other Equity
For the year ended 31 March, 2019

Number of
_ shares

Amount

3s8,130,000 3s,813 00
_ 13,937,11,6 L,393.71

372,067,11,6 37,206.71,

: 3?2.06?.1L6 3? 206.71_

Number of Amount
shares

9,500,000 950.00
_ (9,s00,000) (9s0.00)

Note 1 to 48 forrn an integr;rl part of thr: balance

As per our reporI attached

For A.K,G & ASSOCTATES
Cho rte red Accou,rtto nts
lCAl Firm registr;rtion numberr; 0O26ggN

CA.HARVINDER SINGH
Partner
Membership No.:087889

r .. 
" 

.\..,'1. , .

PIace: Delhi
Date: L9-Feb-20iI0

:;heet of the com panv.

For.ond on behalf of tl.re Boord of Directors of
lndosolar Limited
tti

H.R. Gupta
Managing Director ,/DIN:00297122 I
lr.. \

\SA(.-e).-':--->
{nWffifimar Agarwat
C\ief Iinancia I Officer

I\

4.

zru--'
Taken on Record
Gulshan Gaba

f, esolution professional

Reg n no : I BB tl pA-00 j./t p-

P00 5 4 B/20 1" 7 - L 8/ 109 7 I

'-)

, i ! \,1

Equity Reserves and Surplus
Totallnterest free Securities Retained

384.24 22,r53.30 (89,202.08) (66,664.54)

(16,283.s2)(16,283.s2])
Allotrnent of equity shares 76.84 76.84v.rrEr LuiltptcIteIlStve lncome

11.55
Re-measuremerr.t of defined benefit plans

11.55
Total Comprehr-'nsive lncorne for the year 76.84 (L6,27L.97l (15,19s.14)

Balance as at 1 April 2018 384.24 22,230.L4 (i.os,474.os) (82,8s9.67)Profit for the year
(s2,s01.30) (52,501.30)Allotnrent of eq.rity shares

5.77

Other Comprehensive llcorne

5.77
Re-measuremerrt of definecl hpnpfit nl

I v.dr rurilpreilenStve tnconle lor tne year (52,495.53) (s2,49s.s3)

Balance as at 31 March 2019 384.24 )) 71.n (13s,3s5.20)

i) Refer note 14 for nature and purpose of rerserves

Balance as at 31 March 20j.7



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the finanr:ial statements for the year ended 31 March 2o1g
(All amourrts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporateinformation

lndosolar Lirnited is; a public cc)mpany domiciled and headquartered in lndia. The Company,s
shares are listed orr the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).
The company is the leadin5; lndian manufacturer of solar photovoltaic cells and its
manufacturing facility is located at Greater Noida, Uttar pradesh.

The Company had shut down its production facilities w.e.f L5th May, 2OIg.
The company is under Corporate lnsolvency Resolution Process under lnsolvencyand
Bankruptcy Code. lts affairs, business and assets are being rn?nag€rd by the Resolution
Professional appoirrted by the Hon'ble NCLT New Delhi vide its order dated 12 April 201.9
underthe provisions of the Corle as lnterim Resolution Professional and subsequentlyas per
section 22 of the Code as Resolution Professional of lndosolar Limited.

As per the Corporarte lnsolvenrcy Resolution Process (CIRP), in our cas;e Form G has been
issued andtwoRescrlution Plans were submitted Resolution Applicants, which are under
consideration.

2. Authorization of Financial Statements

After admission of application by the Hon'ble NCLT, Mr. Gulshan Gaba has in his capacity as
IRP has taken control and custody of the management and operations of the Company from
16th April 2019. For the information set out in the financial statement:; for the year ended
March 31.,2019, therRp has relied upon the accuracy and veracity of any,and all information
and data provided liy the officials of the Company and the records of the Company made
available by such officials. For all such information and data, the Rp ha:; assumed that such
information and data are in the conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws with respect to the preparation of the financial statenrents and that they
give true and fair vir:w of the position of the Company as of the dates and period indicated
therein. Accordingly, the RP is not making any representations regarding accuracy, veracity
orcompleteness of the data or information in the financial statements. As the powers of the
Board of Directors have been suspended, the above results have not been adopted by Board
of Directors. However, the same have been signed by Mr. H.R. Gupta, Managing Director
and Mr. Anand Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer of the Company r:onfirming accuracy
and completelness of the results and taken on record by Mr. Gulshan Gaba, Resolution
Professiona l.

,, \ \-u1'
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lndosolar [irmited
Notes to th* finanr:iar statements for the year ended 31 Marc h zoLg
(All amounts; in Rupees lakhs, unress otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies applied by The company in the preparation of its financial
statements are listrad belour. such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
the periods presented in these financialstatements, unless otherwise indicated.

(i) Basis of preparation

a) Statement of crompliance with lnd AS:
These f inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by Ministry of
corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 and the
companies (lnclian Accountingstandards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant
provisiorrs of the Act.

b) Basis of measur.ement

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for
the followingmaterial items those have been measured at fair value as required by
relevant ilndAS :

-certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
-defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;
Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are required to
be disclos;ed in the said fiinancial statements.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

Fair value measurement:

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction betrueen market participants at the measurement date (that is, an
exit price)' lt is a market-basr-'d measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. The fair
value measurcrment is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes plar:e either:
. ln the principal nrarket for the asset or Iiability, or
' ln the absence of a princilpal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

I

(\ r-i
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lndosolar limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2019
(All amounts in Ruprees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The principal or ther most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic berst interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are aF,propriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and mirnimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Where req u i red/a p propriate, extern a I va luers a re inv,olved.

All financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy established by lnd AS113, that
categorizes into three levels, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
These are based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputstothe fairvalue measurement in its entirety:

Level l inputs are quotr:d prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the erntity cian access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are: inputs other tlnan quoted prir:es included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,, either directly(i.e. as prices) or indirectly(i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level tr inputs)
unobservable input:; (Level 3 inputs).

prices (unadjusted) in active

and the lowest priority to

([ t''
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the finanr:ial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and
which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amount approximates fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of
reporting period during which change has occurred.

c) Current non-currerrt classification:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset istreated as current when it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelvemonths after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
o lt is expected to be settled in nonmal operating cycle
o lt is held primariily for the purpo:;e of trading
o lt is due to be serttled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after thr: reportingperiod

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycler is the time between the acqr.risition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalernts. Based on the nature of products / services and time
between acquisitiort of assets for processing / rendering of services and their realization in
cash and cash equir,'alents, operating cycle is less than 12 months. However, for the purpose
of current/non-current classification of assets & liabilities period of 1,2 months has been

{

Ir .-i
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considered as normal operating cycle.
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year enrJed 31 March 2o1g
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d) Functional and prer;entation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the ,,functional

currency")" The finarncial statements are presenterl in lndian Rupee, the national currency of
lndia, which is the functional currency of the Comprany.

e) Rounding of amounts:
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes are in lndian Rupees in lakhs
rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule lll to the Companies Act, zol3,
unless otherwise stated.

(ii) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of the lnd AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions tl"rat affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financialstatements, and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and the
results of operatiorrs during the reporting periocl. Actual results could differ from those
estimates' The estirnates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Such estimates & assumptions are based on management evaluation of relevant facts &
circumstances as on date of financial statements. Revisions to accountrng estimates are
recognised in the pr:riod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period; they are recognised in the period of the rr:vision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(iii)Revenue recognitionr: So/e of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, which
is mainly upon deliverry and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The company
retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a degree usually, associated with
ownership and no silgnificant uncertainty exists reg;arding the amount of the consideration
that will be derived from the sale of goods. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration receiverd or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates
and any taxes or dutir:s collected on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such
as goods and services tax, value adderl tax, etc. , I
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the !€?r €rd€d 31 March 2o1g
(Ail amounts in Ruprees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

lnl'erest lncome:

lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable e{fective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estirnated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of a

financial liability or a financial asset to their gross r:arrying amount.

(iv)Property, plant ancl equipment (ppE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accunrulated impairment lossr:s, if any. Subsequent costs are inclr,lded in the asset,s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only lvhen it is probable
that future econontic benefits asscrciated with the item will flow to the Company and the
co:;t of the item can be measured reliably. All othr:r repairs and maintenance are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment r:omprises -
i. its purchase prir:e, including import duties anrJ non -refundable purchase taxes (net of

duty/ tax credit availed), after derducting trade discounts and rebates.
ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by rnanagement.
iii. borrowing cost directly attributable to the qualifying asset in accordance with accounting

policy on borrouring cost.

iv. the costs of disnrantling, removirtg the item anrl restoring the site on which it is located.

PPIi in the course of construction for productiotr, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes direct costs, related pre-
opc'rational expenstls and for qualifying assets applicable borrowing costs to be capitalised
in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Administrative, general overheads and
other indirect expenditure (including borrowing r:osts) incurred during the project period
which are not directly related to the project nor are incidentalthereto, are expensed.

Property, plant ancl equipment which are not rr:ady for intended use ason the date of
Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Capital work-in-progress". Theyare classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intetnded use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other items of ppE,

conlmences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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!ndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2o1g
(All amounts in Rup,ees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

An item of propert'1, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from thr: continued use of asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirentent of an iterm of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the staternent of profit and Loss"

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the plant and
equipment separately, if the component/part has a cost which is significantto the total cost
of the plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the
remaining plant ancl equipment.

Machinery spares vvhich meets the criteria of PPE is capitalized and depreciated over the
userful life of the respective asset.

Deemed cost on tronsition to tnd AS:

Under the Previous GAAP, all property, plant and equipment were carried at in the Balance
Sheet on basis of historical cost, except leasehcld land which was carried at revalued
amount. The Company has elected to continue wil;h the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as of April 1,2016 (the transition date) measured as perthe
previous GAAP (including previous GAAP revaluation of leasehold land as at 31st December,
2008) and use such carryingvalue as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Depreciation:

Deprs61311.n on fixr:d assets (other than freehold land and capital wonk in progress) is
provided on the straight line methorJ, based on their respective estimate of useful lives, as
given below. Estimated useful lives of assets are determined based on internal assessment
estirnated by the management of the Company ancl supported by technicat advice wherever
so required. The nranagement believes that useful lives currently used, which is as
prescribed under Sclhedule ll to the Companies Act, 20L3, fairly reflect its estimate of the
useful lives and residual values of fixed assets, though these lives in certain cases are
differrent from lives prescribed under Schedule ll.
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Ruprees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Type of asserts Useful life in years
Leasehold Land Over Lease Period i.e.

90 years
Buildings

Factory Building 30 years
Non Factory Buildings 60 years
Plant and Machinery *

5 - 25years
Furniture and Fixtures L0 years
Office Equiprnent 5 years
Vehicles 8 - 10 years
Computers 3 years

*Based on internal technical evaluation and extr:rnal advised received, the management
believes thatthe ut;eful lives as considered for arriving at the depreciation rates, best
represent the period over whichmanagement expect to use these assets. Hence, the useful
lives for these assets is different from theuseful lives as prescribed under part C of Schedule
ll of the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets individually costing Rs. 5000 clr less are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and
condition necessar\/ for it to be capabte of cperating in the manner intended by
management. Depreciation of an a:;set ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
retired from active use and is held for disposal and the date that the asset is derecognised.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the
same basis as ownecl assets or, where shorter, the l:erm of the relevant lease.

Depreciation methotls, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically including at
the end of each financial year. Any changes in depr,,.ciation method, useful lives and residual
values are treated as; a change in accounting estimirte and applied/adjusted prospectively, if
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lndosolar Liimited
Notes to the finanr:ial statements for the year ended 31 March zolg
(All amounts in Ruprees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(v) lntangible ;rssets

ldentifiable intangible assets are recognized when the Company controls the asset, it is
probable that future economic benefits attributedl to the asset will flow to the Company and
the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets with finite useful lives are
recognised at cost of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisatic,n and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

lntangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the balance sheet are
disclosed as 'intangible assets under development,.
An intangible asset should be derecognised (eliminated frgm the balance sheet) on disposal
or when no future etconomic benefits are expectecl from its use and subsequent disposal.
Gains or lo:;ses arising from the retirement or clisposal of an intangible asset should be
determined as the difference between the net distrrosal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and shoulJ be recognised as income or e:(pense in the statement of profit and loss.

Deemed cost on tronsition to lnd AS:

Under the Previous GAAP, all lntangible assets were carried at in the Balance Sheet on basis
of historical cost. The Company has elected to corrtinue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as of April L, 2016 (the transition date) measured as per the
previous GA,AP and use such carrying value as its dr:emed cost as of the transition date,

Amortisation:

lntangible a:;sets are amortised on a straight line basis oyer the estimated useful lives of
respective assets from the date wlren the asset are available for use, on pro-rata basis.
Estimated us;eful livels by major class of finite-life intangible assets are as follows:

Type of assets Useful life in years
Computrerroft*ar.

The amortis;ation preriod and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is
reviewed at each firrancial year encl. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benef ts embodied in the asset are considered
to modifythe amortisation period or method, as allpropriate, and are treated as changes in
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the finanr:ial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees takhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vi) Financial instruments
Financial Assets:

lnitiol recognition a, nd measurement:

Financial assets are recognised when the Comprany becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

on initial recognil'ion, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. ln case of financial assets which
are recognised at fair value through profit anrJ loss (FWPL), its transaction costs are
recognised in the :;tatement of profit and loss. ln other cases, the transaction costs are
added to or deductr-.d from the fair value of the financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

amortised cost (if it is held within a business nrodel whose objective is to hold the asset
in orderto coller:t contractual cash flows and tlne contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment:; of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding)
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

fair value through other comprehensive incomer (FVTocl).

Derecognition:

The Company derecognises a financial asset wherr the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial as;set expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to recerive the cash flows
from the asset.

lmpdirment ol Financial Asset:

ln accordance with lnd AS L09, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment losr; on the financiat assets and credit risk
exposures.
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year errded 31 March zolg
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, untess otherwise stated)

The Company follows 'simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables or contract revenue receivable:;. simptified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. This involves
use of provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward looking infornration. The exprected credit loss allowance is based on the
ageing of the receivables that are due and the ratr-.s used in the provision matrix.

ECL is the difference between al| contractual r:ash flows that are due to the group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flours that tl're entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original ElR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The L2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within L2 months after the reporting date.

The company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity
operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodotogy applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and los;s.

Financial Liabilities and equitv instruments:

Classification as debt or equitv
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liabirity and an equity instrument.

Equitv instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidencies a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity insrtruments issued by a company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2o1g
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities
I nitial recogn,ition ond meosurement:
Financial liabilities are recognised when the cornpany becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial reco6lnition, as financial liabilities at fair valuethrough prof[t or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, a$ appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The fairvalue of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normallythe transaction price.lf the company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price, difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price shall be recognized as gain or toss unless it qualifies for recognition as an asset or
liability' This normally depends on the relationship between the lender and borrower or the
reason for providing the loan. Accordingly, in case of interest-free loan from promoters tothe company, the difference between the loan amount and its fair value is treated as anequity contribution to the Company.

ln accordance with lnd AS 113, the fair value of a i'inancial liability with a demand feature isnot less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the
amount could be required to be paid.

The company"s financial liabilities inctude trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings inclluding ban k overd rafts.

Su bseq ue nt meos u re m e nt
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings
After initial recrcgnition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cclst using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as throrrgh the EIR amortisation process.
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

Amortised corst is calculated by taking into accor;nt any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless and to the extent capitalised as part
of costs of an asset.

The effective interest method is a method of carlculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and clf allocating interest expense over the retevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated frrture cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the I'inancial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Trade and other pavables

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. when an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially' nlodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as thr: derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liabitity. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetti ng of Fi na n ci a I I nstru m e nts
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance sheet if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amount
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

( uii) Preference sh anes

a. Convertible preference shares
convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on
the terms of the contract.

t't /t' _!,/ 
rl

\ (f



lndosolar Linrited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unless otherwise stated)

on issuance 0f the convertible preference shares;, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount
is classified as a financial liability measured at anrortised cost (net of transaction costs) until
it is extinguisfred on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in equity since conversion option merets lnd AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed
classification' Transaction costs are deducted frorn equity, net of associated income tax. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not r()measured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially rer:ognised.

b. Contingent Convertible preference shares

A contingent convertible preference shares is an instrument that is convertible, at the option
of the holder, only on the occurrence of a contingent event outside of the control of the
holder or the issuer' lf the contingent event occurs then the holder has the option, but not
the obligation,' to convert. lf the contingent event does not occur, then the instrument will
be settled in cash at maturitylduedates.

The fact that conversion is only contingent does not mean the instrument has no equity
component' ll' on occurrence of the contingent event, exercise of the conversion option
would result irr the exchange of a fixed number of the issuer's own equity instruments for a
fixed amount of cash (in the functional currency of the issuing entity), the conversion option
would meet the definition of an equity instrument, under IAS 32 and the overall instrument
would be treat,r:d as compound instrument,

whether or not the contingency is within the controt of the issuer is an important
consideration lvhen classifying financial instruments with contingent settlement provisions
as either financial liabilities or equity.
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lndosolar [imited
Notes to the financiar statements for the year ernded 31 March 2019(All amounts in Rupees iakhs, unless otherwise stated)

lf a contingernt settlement provision is regarded as outside the control of the issuing entity,the instrument is classified as a liability by the issuer. rf a contingent settrement provision isregarded as within the control of the reporting entity, the instrument will be classified asequity' provided that it has no other features re<;uiring its classification as a liability and thatthe contingent settlement event is also outside trre contror of the horderThe company has issued t% optionally converrtible cumutative Redeemabte preference
shares (occttPs) to Union Bank of lndia under Dr:bt settlement Agreement pursuant to oneTime settlernent with them'ln case of an evernt of defaurt by the company in timeryrepayment/rr*demption as defined in the said Agreement, the Bank has a right to convertthe preference shares into equity at a conver:sion price, being higher of par value andmarket valuer of the equity share in accordance with SEBI formula.Hence the contingentsettlement event is Event of default by the conrpany which is not within the issuer,s (thecompany's'l control and the exercise of the convr:rsion option woutd result in the exchangeof a variabre number of the issuer's own equity instruments.

The company" the issuer of the instrument does not have the unconditional right to avoiddelivering cash or another financial asset (or otherwise to settle it in such a way that itwould be a financial liability). Therefore, it is a financial liability of the company.

liviii) lmpairment of Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories ar€| assessed at eachreporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any suchindication exists, then the asset's recoverable anrount is estimated. An impairment loss isrecognised' as an expense in the statement of profit and Loss, for the amount by which theasset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is thehigher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. value in use is ascertainedthrough discounting of the estimated future cash frows using a discount rate that refrectsthe current rnarket assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to theassets' For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels intocash generating units for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.lmpairment losses recognised in prior years are r€|versed when there is an indication thatthe impairmenrt losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. such reversals arerecognised as ain increase in carrying amounts of assets to the extent that it does not exceedthe carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of amortization ordepreciation)"tnlpairment of assets was carried out on 30.0g.201g details of which is givenunder Note 44 (lrxiii).
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lndosolar [imited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019(AIl amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

(ix)Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprises interest expense on borrowings calculated using the effectiveinterest method and exchange differences arisirrg from foreign currency borrowings to theextent that threy are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

The effectiver interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financialasset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over therelevant period.

The effective interest rate (ElR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cashpayments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, whenappropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financialliability. ErR carculation does not include exchanger differences.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productionof a qualifying asset, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time toget ready for their intended use or sale, are included in the cost of those assets. suchborrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset when it is probabre that theywill result in future economic benefits to the entir;y and the costs can be measured reliably.other borrowlng costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they areincurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commenceswhen expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred andactivities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sak: are in progress.

capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activitiesnecessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted orcompleted.

lnvestment income earned on the temporary inv,:51mgn1 eg
their expenditure on quarifying assets is deducted from the
capitalisation.

specific borrowings pending
borrowing costs eligible for
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Indosolar Limited
Notes to the financiar statements for the year ended 31 Marc h zoLg(Allamounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(x) Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (rNR), the functional currency of thecompany" ltems included in the financial statemernts of the company are recorded usingthecurrency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates (the'functional currency,).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchangerates at the date of the transaction. Foreign exclrange gains and losses from settlement ofthese transactions, and from translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the reportingdate exchange rates are recognised in the statement of profit and Loss.

Non-monetary' assets and liabilities denominaterl in a foreign currency and measured athistorical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Under Previours GAAP, the company had opted frlr paragraph 464 of Accounting standardfor 'Effect of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' (AS i-1) which provicred an arternativeaccounting treatment whereby exchange differences arising on long term foreign currencymonetary itemrs relating to depreciable capital asset can be added to or cleducted from thecost of the asset and should be depreciated overthe balance life of the asset.

lnd AS 101 includes an optional exemption that allows a first-time adopter to continue theabove accounting treatment in respect of the long-term foreign currenc\/ monetary itemsrecognised in the financial statements for the period ending imrnediately before thebeginning of the first lnd AS financial reporting period as per the previous GAAp. Thecompany has elected to avail this optional exennption. However, the capitalization ofexchange differences is not allowed on any new long term foreign currency monetary itemrecognized fronr the first rnd AS financiar reporting preriod.

d
1,,

t"1 .L



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financiar statements for the year ernded 3r March 2019(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unress otherwise stated)

(xi) Leases:

The determiination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a rease is based on thesubstance of'the arrangement at the inception of the rease. The arrangement is, or contains,a lease if fulf'[llment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assetsand the arrangement conveys a right to use tl"re asset or assets, everr if that right is notexplicitly specified in an arrangernent.

Company as a tessee

A lease is clas;sified at the inception date as a finance tease or an operating lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the rease transfer substantiaryall the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other teasers are classified asoperating lea:;es.

Finance lease,:

Assets held under finance leases are initiatly recognised as assets of the company at theirfair value at the inception of the lease or, if low'er, at the present value of the minimumlease payments' The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as afina nce lease clbligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and redur:tion of the leaseobligation so as to achieve a constant rate of i.terest on the remaining balance of theliability' Finanr:e expenses are recognised immerliately in statement of profit and Loss,unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized inaccordance with the company's policy on borrowirrg cost. contingent rentars are recognisedas expenses in ithe periods in which they are incurrerd.

A leased asset is depreciated over the usefut lifr: of the asset. Howeve,r, if there is noreasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the tease term,

[:ffiLis 
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated usefut life of the asset and the

(.( '''J
i

(\
'l



tndosolar Lirnited
Notes to the financiar statements for the year ernded 31 March 2019(All amounts; in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise staied)

Operating leose:

ln respect of'assets taken on operating lease, lease rentars are recogni:red as an expense inthe statement of Profit and Loss on straight li^e basis over the rease term unressanothersystematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit is derivedfrom the leased asset orthe payments to the k:ssor are structured to increase in the rinewith expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor,s expected inftationary costincreases.

(xii) lnventories

lnventories are varued at the rower of cost and nert rearisabre varue.

costs incurrerrt in bringing each product to its present location and condition, are accountedfor as follows:
o Raw materials' stores and spares: cost includes cost of purchase(viz. the purchase price,importduties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by theentityf rorn the taxing authorities), and transpor! handling and other costsdirectlyattributable to the acquisition and is net of tradediscounts, rebates and othersimilar items) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their presentlocation and condition. cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

o Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are notwritten d'clwn below cost if the finished products in w*rich they will br-" incorporated areexpected to be sold at or above cost.

Spare parts' which do not meet the definition of property, ptant and equipment areclassified i:ls inventory,

Finished grlods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labourand a proportion ofmanufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity,but excluding borrowing costs. cost isdetermined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

;lTj:::s 
to their presentlocation and condition. Cor;t is deterrninerl on first in, first
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lndosolar Lirnited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, lessestimated costs of completion and the estimated (:osts necessary to make the sale.obsolete' slow moving and defective inventories are identified from time to time and, wherenecessary/ a provision is made for such inventories;.

(xiii) Employee benefits

Short- term etmployee benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service areclassified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, social securitycontributions;' short term compensated absences (paid annual leaves) etc. are measured onan undiscounted basis at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settledand are expensed in the period in which the empto'yee renders the related service.

Post-e m pl oyme nt be n efits :
i) Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is postemployment benefit plan under which the companycontributes fixed contribution to a government admini:;tered fund anrc will have noobligation to pay further contribution. The Company's defined contribution plan comprisesof Provident Fund, Employee State lnsurance scheme and Labour welfare Fund. Thecompany's contribution to defined contribution plans are il-ecognized in the statement ofProfit and Lost; in the period in which employee renclers the related service.

ii) Defined benefit plan

The company's obligation towards gratuity liability is fundecl to an approve6 gratuity fund,which fully covers the said liability under cash Accumulation poticy of Life lnsurancecorporation of lndia (Llc)' The present value of the defined benefit obrigations is determinedbased on actuarial valuation using the projected unit creriit method. The rate used todiscount defin.'d benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at theBalance sheet date on lndian Government Bonds for the estimated term of oLrligations.
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lndosolar Linnited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The amount recognised as 'Employee benefit expenses' in the Statement of profit and Loss is
the cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the current year and
the costs of individual events such as past/future service benefit changes and settlements
(such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and Los:;).
The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset is chargerj or credited to 'Finance costs, in the
Statement of profit and Loss.

Re-measurernent of net defined benefit liability/ asset pertaining to gratuity comprise of
actuarial gairrs/ losses (i'e. changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting frorn experience adjustments and effects of changes in actuarial assumptions), the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the erffect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest)and is recognised immediately in the lbalance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss ,account in subsequent perriods.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations:
The liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly w,ithin 12 months
are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Remeasurementsas a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.Accumulated leave, which is expected to
be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as r;hort terrn employee benefit.

(xiv) Government G rant:

Government grants are recognised only when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will r:omply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Government g;rants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
which the Cornpany recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
intended to compensate.

r periods in

grants are
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended 31 Marc h zotg
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

Accordingly, government grants :

a) related tcl or used for assets are included
recognised as income in profit or loss on
assets.

b) related to an expense item is recognised as income on a systematic basis over theperiods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

ln the unlikely event that a grant previously rr:cognized is ultimately not received, it istreated as a change in estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in theStatement of profit and Loss.

Corporate Socia I Responsibility

The company is not required to spend towards corporate social Responsibility (csR) as per
section 135 of the companies Act, 20L3, since there is no average profit in the last 3 years
calculated as per the provisions of the Act.

(xv) Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax and includes any adjustments related topast periods in current and/or deferred tax adiustments that may become necessary due tocertain deveropments or reviews during the rerevant period.

Current income tox:
Tax on inconre for the current period is determinecl on the basis of taxable income (or on thebasis of book profits wherever minimum alternate tax is applicable,t and tax credits
computed in ar:cordance with the provisions of thr: lncome Tax Act 1961, and based on theexpected outcome of assessments/appeals.

current income tax assets and liabilities are merasured at the amount expected to berecovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used tocompute the arnount are those that are enacted orsubstantively enacted, at the reporting
date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.

in the Balance Sheet as deferred income and
a r;ystematic basis over the useful life of the

r(
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts;in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

current incorne tax relating to items recognised, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, is also recognized in other comprehensive income or in equity, as
appropriate and not in the statement of Profit and Loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a tegally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.

Deferred tox:

Deferred tax is provided using the liability methorl on temporary differenr:es between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax Iiabilities are recognised for alltaxable temporary differences, except:
' when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset

or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transactiort, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or los:;.

' ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments; in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference:s will not reverse in the foreseeabre future.

' Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedrrctible temporary differernces, the carry
forward of' unused tax credits and any unused trrx losses &unabsorbed tpx depreciation.
Deferred tilx assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temprlrary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax rosses can Lre utitisecl, except:

' when the 'cleferred tax asset relating to the dedr"rctible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combinatiorn afld, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

t[ '-\\
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lndosolar Linrited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3r March 2019(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise sl:ated)

' ln respect of deductible temporary diffr:rences associated with investments insubsidiarires' associates and interests in joint arrangements, defenred tax assets arerecognised only to the extent that it is prc,bable that the temporary differences willreverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit wiil be available against which thetemporany differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is rer,,iewed at each reporting date and reducedto the extent that it is no longer probable that s;ufficient taxable profit will be available toallow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets arere-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has becomeprobable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are e.xpected to apply inthe year wherr the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)that have been enacted or substantivery enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax retlating to items recognised outside profit or ross is recogniserd outside profit orloss' Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either inOCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax a:s;sets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right existsto set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to thesame taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred Tax Ai$sets include Minimum Alternative T'ax (MA1') paid in accordance with the taxlaws in lndia, wlhich is likely to give future economir: benefits in the form of availability of setoff against futune income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax assetsin the Balance sheet when the asset can be measured reriably and it is probable that thefuture economir: benefit associated with the asset urilr be rearised.

r
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lndosolar Lirnited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees rakhs, unress otherwise stated)

(xvi) Provisions and contingencies
Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Barlance Street date.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its
present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific tcr the obligation. when discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
relmbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement isvirtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement
net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies:

Contineent Iia bilities
A contingent liability is:

' a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company, or

' a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognisedbecause :

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be meas;ured with sufficient reliability.

contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed unless the contingency js remote.

,i
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that ariser; from past events and ,whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the ComSrany.

Contingent assets are not recognisedbut are disc;losed when the inflow of economic benefits
is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

(xvii)Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial
information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in
deciding how'to allocate resources and assessing performance.

The Company is primarily engaged in manufacture of solar celts and modules. The
Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is the Managing Dinector. He evaluates
the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various
performance indicators by geographical areas only. Accordingly, there is no operating
segment or reportable segment as such.

(xviii) Related party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity and it includes :

(a) A person or a close member of that person's f,amily if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management persrrnnel of the reporting entity or of a parent
of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same Group,
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity.
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.
(v) The ent[ty has a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either

the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity.
(vi)The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 

i
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!ndosolar Limited
Notes to the financlial sitatements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of

the key manitgement personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or aly member of a Group of which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to ther reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting errtity.

Close nrernbers of the family of a person are those family mermbers who may beexper:ted to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings withthe entity including,:

(a) that person's children, spouse or domestic partner, brothelr, sister, father

and mother;

(b) children of that person's spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person's spouse or domestic partner.

Key nnanagement personnel are those persons having authority andresponsibility for

planning, directing and controlling the activities of theentity,, directly or indirectly, including

any director (whether executivre orotherwise) of that entity.

Related party transacliions and outstanding balances disclosed in the financial sl[atements

are in accordance lvithr the above definition as per lnd AS 24.

(xix) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash iand cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and

short ternr deposits/irrvestmenrts with an original maturity of three months or les:; from the

date rcf acquisitiorr, r,vhich aret subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, These

exclude bank balances (including deposits) held as margin money or securilty against

borro'wings, guaranteers etc. being not readily available for use by the Company.

For tlre purpose of the Statenrent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash

and slrort term deposits and exclude items which are not available for general use as on the

date rcf Balance Slreet, as defined above, net of bank overdrafts which are repayilble on

demand where thery form an integral part of an entity's cash management.

-A(\ .Ji,



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financiat statemenlls for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All iamounts in Ruperes lakhs, unlless otherwise stated)

(xx) Cash Flow Statemertt:

Statement of cash Flows is prepilred segregating the cash floltrs into operating, investing and

financing activities. cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method as

set out in lnd AS 7 'Statr:ment of Cash Flows', adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. charrges during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables

transactions of a non-cash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as de:preciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign

currenr3y gains and losses, and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

(xxi) EarninBs per share:

The Basic Earnings per equity sl"rare ('EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit or loss after

tax before other comprehensivr: income for the year attributable to the equity shareholders

of the company by weighted srrerage number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Or<linerry shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible

instrument are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the

contract is enterecl into. Contingently issuable shares are treated as outstanding and are

included in the calculaltion of basic earnings per share only fr'om the date when all necessary

corrditions are satisfiecl (i.e. the events have occurred).

Diluted earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss before oCl

attributable to eqr"rity holders of the Company by the weiglrted average number of equity

shares; considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted

average number of equity shares that could have been issuerJ upon conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares (including options and warrants). The dilutive potential eqr-rity shares

are acljusted for tl"re proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair

value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the

period unless issued a1l a later date"

LI
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Indosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Contingently issuable potential ordinary shares (such as contingently issuable convertible

instruments) are includerd inthe rliluted earnings per share in accordance with lnd AS, 33. The

Optionally Convertibrle Cumulative Redeemable Preference slrares (OCCRPS) issued by the

Companyto Union Elanl< of lndia under Debt Settlement Agreement where the Barnk has a

righlt to convert thr: preference shares into equity in the event of default are in fact

cont,ingent convertible preference shares and the contingent settlement event is Event of

default by the Compan,y. As the said event has not happenerJ till the end of the reporting

period, exercise or conversion is not assumed for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings

per share and accordingly poterrtial ordinary shares are not included in the calculation of

dilulted earnings per share. Anti-rlilutive effects are ignored.

(xxii) Events after Reporting rCate:

Whgre events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that

existed at the end of thre reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the

financial statementr;. V/here the events are indicative of conditions that arose after the

repprting period, tl're armounts are not adjusted, but are disclosed if those non-adjusting

events are material.

(xxiii) Exceptional ltems:

An item of lncome or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in

order to improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an

exceptional item an,C the same is disclosed in the financial stal.ements.

(xxivlNew and amended standards and interpretations: effective for the reporting periorl

Standards issued but not yet effective

ln March 20L9, the tVlinistry of Corporate Affairs (the

notified lnd AS l-1t3 'L.ease' and amendments in other

Cornpany with effect from April L, 2019.

MCI\), Government of lndia (Gol)

lnd ASs and is aPPlicable to the
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statement:; for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees lirkhs, unless otherwise stated)

lnd A5116 l-eases:

lnd AS115 will reSllac,e the existing leases Standard, lnd ASL7 Leases, and relatr''d

lnterpretations. The standard sr:ts out the principles for the recognition, measurernent'

presentation and disclosure of lerases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the

lessor. lnd AS115 introduces a single lessee accounting modr-'l and requires a lessr=e to

recognize assets ancl lialbilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless

the under lying as:;et is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure

requirements for lessees.

lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17' The

standard permits two pr:ssible methods of transition:

- Retrospectively tc, each prior period presented applying lnd AS 8 Accounting Policies'

Changes in Accounlcing Estimates and Errors'

- Retrospectively, urith the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recogni:zed at

the date of initial application. Under this approach, the lessee records the lease liability as

the present value of the rernaining lease payments, disc'ounted at the increnrental

borrowing rate and the right of use asset'

The company is currently evaluating the effect of this arnendment on the financial

statements.

(xxvlNew and amended standards arrd lnterpretations: lssued but rrot yet effective'

The Company is still evaluating the applicability and relevance of certain new standards &

lnterpretations to <lxisting stanclards issued, but not yet effective, upto the date of is:;uance

of the company's financial statelmenzts, on the company's operrations and its impact on the

financial statements of the connpany in terms of results, presentation or disclosure' Those

that may be relevant to the cormpany are set out below. The l:ompany shall adopt tlrem' if

applicable, when they become elffective'

lnd AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

on March 28, 2OL8, Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) l"ras notified the lnd A's 115'

"Revenue from contrarct with customers". The core principle clf the new standard is that an

entity should recogni:le revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to

customers in an amotjnt that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be

entitled in exchanSle for those g;oods or services 
\ i i Inq (} '--1 q,
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lndosolar Limited

Notes to the financial statementr; for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unh-'ss otherwise stated)

Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount' timing

and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity"s contracts with

customers. The standarrC permits following two

possible methods of transition: fletrospective approach - Under this approach the starndard

will be applied retrospelctively t<l each prior reporting period presented in accordancer with

lncl AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimaters and Errors Retrospectively

with cumulative ef'Fect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial

application (cumulative catch - up approach). The effective date for adoption of lnd AS 115

is financial periods beginning on or after April L, 2OL8' The Company is evaluating the

requirements of th* annendment and the effect on the financiar statements will be given in

due course.

Amendment to tnd AS 12 "lncolre Taxes"

The amendment t' rnd AS 1_2 requires the entities to consirrer restriction in tax l;aw:; in

SourcesoftaxablePr.cfitagairrstwhichmaymakedeductionsonreversalofdeductible
temporary differences (may or may not have arisen from sarne source) and also consider

probable future ta:table profit. 'Ihe amendment will come into force from April l-' 201t8' The

Company is evaluatinE; the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial

statements will be given in due course'

Amendment to lnd As; 21The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates"

AppendixBtolnrjAS2].,Foreigncurrencytransactionsandadvanceconsideration:on
March 28,2078, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (lndian

Accounting standards) Amendrnent Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to lnd AS 21' Foreign

currency transactions and advance consideration which crarifies the date of the tranrsaction

for the purpose ol' determinin6; the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related

asset, expense or inc,Cme, whr:n an entity has received or parid advance consideration in a

foreign currency. The amendnrent will come into force from April L, 2o]:8' The conrpany is

evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements

will be given in due course !
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statemerrts for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwisu'stated)

Non-current Current

5 Financialassets-Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
Advance to employees

Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered goorl
Deposits with banks remaining nraturity of rnore than
lnterest accrued but not due on I'ixed deposit

Deferred Tax Assets
Refer Note 31

Other Assets

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Balance with statutory/governmr:nt authorities
Prepaid expenses
Advances for materials and servir:es
TDS Receivable*
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Ba I a n ce with statutory/gove rn m r-. nt a uth orities

Less : Provision for balance vrith

*lncludes TDS for FY 2018-19

As at 31 March As at 31 March
2019 2018

As at 31 As at 31

March 2019 March 2018

4.77
Ls7.69 1103.90 4.77

Non-current Current
As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 31 As at 31

2019 2018 March 2019 March 2018

50.00
37.27 55.84
87.27 55.84

Non-current Current

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 31 As at 31

2OL9 2018 March 2019 March 2018

157.69 403.90

36.04

7,077._28

zE.zq

623.55
63.32
o.17

L82.41

632'.02
28.47

160.s3

242.51
36.04 7,05L.02 869.45 1,063.53

(242.51l
1.051.02 82L.02

i

(l t--i e\-
:
I
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended i31 March, 20X.9

(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise staterJ)

9 lnventories

Raw material and components
Finished goods*
Traded goods*
Stores, spares and other co rsunrables

Raw material and

*Since all the above material has expired the present

determined as on date.

Trade receivables (current)

Considered good, unless othervrise stated
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered dou btful

Less : Allowance for doubtf ul trerde receivables

As at 3X March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

537.34

1,636.04
439.30

76.09
51.4.78

10

537.34 2,665.51

market value is zero as except immaterial scrap value which cannot be

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

14.53
354.86

291.30
248.10

359.39 539.40(3s4.86) 3!&1E
297.30

There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Comperny, either severally or jointly with any

other person, or from any firms or private cr:mpanies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Current

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance in current account
Cash on hand

Deposits with original matL rity r:f less than three months

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

67.07 292.45

Current

Bank balances (other than cash & cash equivalent)*

Deposits with bank with or gina maturities more than 12 months **

Deposits with bank with or gina maturities more than 3 months and less

than 12 months

Amount disclosed under non current assets (refer note 6)

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

405.11

* Deposits are in the naturo of rnargin money plerJged with banks.
** As information regardinlg original maturity is not available, deposits are considered to be traving o'riginal maturillies

t"I. , r ii! -il LL \,,( \

,:,:,,

14.53

66.89
0.-12

290.15
2.30

5.11

400.00

397.30

5.10

405.11 402.40
(:r0.00)

352.40

-"-f'-

Chemical (in Ltrs)

Gas

Paster (in Kgs)

Screen (in Nos)

0

0

0

0

0

3,478

4,523
9,765
1,375

40,850

Finished Goods

Pa rticu lars Quantity (Pcs) Valure

Multicrystalline Photovolta ic solar cell

Multicrystalline Photovolta ic solar cell

Multicrystalline Photovoltaic solar cell (Cut tlells)

Rejected Cell

Module (3Cl1)

Module (Malakpur)

22,218

5,030

137,819

157,730
44

330

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total 323,177 0

L2

than 12 months

Pa rticula rs Quantitv Value

Tatol 59,991 0



lndosolar Limited

Notes to the financial statementrt for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

13(a) Equity share capital As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 12018

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each

lssued, subscribed and fully parid up shares

Equity shares of Rs,10 each

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

500,000,000 50,000.00 s00,000,000 50,000.00

372.067.t!6 37,206.77 372,067,176 ?l-2!SJ1-

13(b) lnstruments entirely equity in nature

Preference Shares
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Authorised share capital

Preference shares of Rs.10 each

lssued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

Compulsorily Convertible Prefr:rence shares of Rs.10

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

500,000,000 50,000.00 500,000,000 50,000,00

The Company has also lss;ued 20,70,00,000 no. of optionally convertible cumulativre redeernable preference shares

(OCCRpS) of Rs. 10 each on 27lhMay,2017 which has been shown as Non-Current Borrowings (being liability).

Refer note 15

a Reconciliation of shares o

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

and at the end of the

No. of Shares Amount No. ofShares AmountEquity shares

At the beginning of the year

Add : Shares issued during th€r Year

Outstanding at the end of the Year

Preference shares

i. Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

At the beginning of the yr:ar

Add : Shares issued during ther year

Less : Conversion into eq lity :thare

At the end of the year

ii. Optionally Convertible Cunrulative Redeemable

Preference Shares

Considered as liability (rrlfer note 15)

372,067,116 37,206.7t 358,130,000 35,813.00

13,937,716 1,393,71

372,067,L16 37,206.71 372,067,176 37,207

9,s00.00 950.00

(s,s00.oo) _(=Eq99l_

o\

rii,

It\,1- r-\,,i\, \'
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b Term and rights attached to shares:

(i) Equity shares

The Company has only oxe type of equity share having par value of Rs. 10. All shares rank pari passu with respect to
dividend, voting rights and other terms. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share except, in respect of any shares
on which any calls or otherr surns payable have not been paid, The Company pays and declares dividends in lndian Rupees.

The dividend proposed, i[ any,, by the Board of directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, The repayment of equity share capital in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible
subject to prevalent regu ations. ln the event of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdinl3.

(ii) Preference shares

The Company had issued 9,500,000 zero (:oupon non-convertible, non- cumulativ'e redeemable preference shares having
par value of Rs. 10 each per share in the year ended 31 March 2013. ln the Annual General Meeting held on 30th
September, 2015, the shareholders had approved change in terms of 9,500,0100 zero coupon non-convertible, non-
cumulative redeemable preference shares to 9,500,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares 'CCPS'. "ln-principle"
approval from stock exchernges; had been received on 16 October 2015 and on 4 April 2016 from NSE and BSE respectively.
Accordingly, on 8 April 2016, the Company changed the terms of preference shares subject to the condition that the
mentioned 9,500,000 conrpulsorily convertible preference shares locked-in for a period of one year from the date of
allotment. The said CCPS urere converted into 87,31,617 equity shares @ 10.88 per equity share (including prenriunr of Rs.

0.88 per share) on 27lh Ylay,2017. The preference shareholders will have right of dividend or to vote at the General
Meeting of Equity Sharehclder:; after the conversion into equity shares.

c Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5%

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 11018

No. of Shares

% oI total
shares in the

class

% of total
No. of Shares sl'rares in the

Equity shares of Rs. 10 ear:h fully paid

Hulas Rahul Gupta

Greenlite Lighting Corporation
Late Bhushan Kumar Gupta

Preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
a. Compulsorily Convertible Pr,eference Shares

b. Optionally Convertible llumr.rlative Redeemable

Preference Shares

Considered as liability (reter ncte 15)

80,385,494

74,446,557

56,500,001

2:1.61%

20.01%

t!;.79%

80,385,494

74,446,551

55,500,001

__ class

2L.61%

2A.07%

.t5.r9%

Aggregate number of sharr: issued for conslderation other than cash, bonus shares irssued arrd shares bought back during
the period of five years im nediately prececling the reporting period:

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March i!018

Equity shares allotted as fLrlly paid up pursLlant to
contracts without payment being received in cash *

Equity shares allotted as fr.rlly paid up by way of bonus shares

Equity Shares bought back by the company

* Also refer note (b)(i) aboye.

13,9137,115.00

. rl '-\,It
t.

li

\



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial sta'liements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

L4 Other Equity

Equity Component of lnterest free loans from Promoters
Reserves and Surplus :

Securities Premiunr

Retained Earnings

Total reserves and surplus

Total

As at 31 March As at 31 March
2019 2018

384.24 384.24

22,230.t4 2',.2,230.14

(157,969.58) (105,474.05)
(135,739.45) (83,243.91)

(135,355.21) (8:2,859.67)

Nature and purpose of reserves

a.)Security Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares i:; recognised in Securities Premium
Reserve. This can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

b.) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings rare the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any distributions paid to the
shareholders. The sanre can be utilized by the Company in accordance with the provisiorrs of the
Companies Act,201,3.

ir
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lndosolar Limited
lrlotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Allamounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

L7 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
(refer note 36 & 45)
- Provision for gratuity
- Provision for compensaterJ absences

l\lon-current Current
As at 31 March As at tt1

2019 March 2018

As at 31 March As ilt 31 March
2019 2018

48.79 ,48.79
o.42

17.83
1.03489

17.83
48.79 ,18.79

Current borrowings
(Refer note 45)
From Banks (secured)
Cash credit loans repayable on demancl
Short term borrowings
Buyers credit*
Unsecured

Loan from related party (refer note 34)

* Against import of Plant an,c Machinery to be paid out of priority Term Loan.

Current financial liabilities - Trade payables (refer Note 45)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of rnicro enterprise,s and small enterprises (refer note 39,1

20 Current - Other financial liabilities

(Refer Note 45)
Current maturities of bank borrowings (Refer note 15)
Current maturities of financer lea:;e obli5;ations (Refer note 15)
lnterest accrued and due on long term borrowings
lnterest accrued and due on short term borowings/current maturity of long term
borrowings
Others*
-Creditor for capital goods
-Salary,wages and bonus payable
-Other payable

* Provisions has been made to the extent inlbrmation available

21. Other current liabilities
Revenue received in advance
Advance from customers
Others:
lnterest accrued and due on IVSN|ED parties (Refer Note 39)
Tax deducted at source payable

Other statutory dues payable

18.85

18 As at 31 March As at 31 March
2019 2018

2,L65.64

1,315.91

75.57

2,L65.64
7,326.87

53.69

3557.02 3s46.20

As at 31 March As art 31 March
20L9 20,t8

8,483.80

86.9s

6,770.97

126.08
8,570.75 6.237.05

As at 31 March As at 31, March
20L9 2018

78,717.26

8.63

30,490.05

61,5.73

757.58
571.75

47,989.4L
8:63

27,464.49

3,361.75
r27.54
:r73.38

110,561.10 79.s24.20

As at 31 March As at 31 March
2019 2018

673.16

20.L0

0.43

95.00

20.30

t7.26
80.12

\

________Eg3.6g_ 205.68 .::::1.
, i1 (i L-r l* --,L -'



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financiar statenlentrs for the ye,r ended 31 March, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otheiw,ise stated)

22 Revenue from operatiorrs

Sale of product
Sale of products - finishr_'d goods
Sale of products - trade(, goc)ds
Sale of products

Other operating revenue
Scrap sale
Cells Conversion Job work
Export lncentive Earned

Break -up of revenue from sale of products
Solar cells
Solar module

Other income

lnterest income on

a) Financial assets held at amortised cost
Fixed deposits with banks
Others

b) Others
lnterest on servicer tax refund

Other non operating income
Net gain on foreigtr currency trans,action and translation
Profit/ (Loss) on serle ol fixed asset:;
Provisions/Liabilities no longer required written back
Provision for doubtful debts written back

Cost of material consumed

lnventory at the beginnin5; of the year
Add: Purchases
Less: Purchase return
Less : lnventory at the enc of tlre year
Cost of raw material consumed

- 

. !4Q.36 4,,!75..15

_ 1,31e.ss 31;!g!qg_

For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2019 March 2018 --

873.23 26,t325.94

2.77 36..38
12.25
62.65

2.7't

3L,4.t2.t7

873.23 26,825.5t4

For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2019 March 2O18

446.36 a aiq 1^

23

30.67
27.72

(ro.sst
248.49

37.72
,48.15

t19.39

2:r8.42

:13.47

For the year ended For the year endr:d 31
31 March 2019 March 2018

1,636.04
1,151.00
1,,645.O2

8iI1.30
22,39t2.7:'

- 1'63i6'0'L-
1,L42.O2 2L,s7zgg:

25 Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of stock in trade (solar modules)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year enderd 3:L

March 2018

92.98 4,401,.94

92.98 4,407.94

rt t-1
'i

I

t

rr\,'\l 'tD,/"''

24



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements forthe year ended 31 March, ?01g
(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

26 Change in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

lnventories at the beginning of year
- Finished goods
- Traded goods

lnventories at the end of year
- Finished goods
- Traded goods

Decrease/(increase) durin,g ther year

27 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident ernd o,ther funds (refer note 36(a))
Gratuity expenses (refer note 3rj(b))
Staff welfare expenses

28 Finance costs

a. lnterest

i. On Financial liabilities :

-Bank borrowings
-Other

ii. on Unwinding of discount resurting in increase in financiar
liabilities

-lnterest free loan frorn promoter
-lnterest on OCCRpS

iii. On Finance cost on finance lease obligation
iv. Net interest on net dr:fined benefit liability (Refer Note 36)

b. Other borrowing cost

29 Depreciation and amortisatiion expense

Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortisation on intangible assets

For the year ended 31
March 2O19

For the year ended 31
March 2018

2,305.34

120.35

439.30

76.09

:----{11!q 
- - 

1,s10.30

,139.30

76.09

For the lrear ended 31
March 2019

For the year ended 31
March !!018

395.11

24.46

27 "27

9.15

t,203.79

105.91

26.49

____12i.09_
7,457.67455.99

For the year ended 31

March 2019
For the year ended 3l

March 2018

3,9_t7.07

7.60

48.60

1,,0L0.77

8.63

80.37

4,551.41

220.97

43.89

394.26

8.63

7"97

130.81
5,093.04 5,351.94

--
For the year ended 31

March 2019
For the year ended 3t

March 2018
2,409.22

4.47
it,80t;"22

4.36
2,473.69 2,810.59

\



lndosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3L March, 201.9
(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

30 Other expenses

Advertisement and sales promotion
Selling and distribution exl)enses
Fuel and power
Equipment rental charges
Loading and unloading charges
Spares and consumables
Consumable stores
Travel and conveyance
Professional Expenses
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 35)
Rent

lnsurance

Communication

Repair and maintenance :

- Plant and machinery
- Vehicle
- Others

Rates and taxes
Provision for service tax not recc,verable
Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Service tax not recoverable ,written off
Miscellaneous expenses't
Expenses Written off
Provision for doubtful debts
Net Loss on foreign currencl, trarrsaction and translation

* Miscellanous expenses lncludes prepaid Expenses written off for Rs
available.

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2018March 2019

1,7.87

35.44
250.98

7.20

14.97

41.13

76.64
110.05

19.15

0.60
L2.17

:11.05

8.31

13.03

13.65

8.24

60.18

27.60

L78.70

3.58
799.67

3.56

47.33

2.44.87

1,776.00

7.86

104.02

546.47

221.64
83.02

483.35

29.26

6.68

ti1.00

:;4.70

146.31

4s.88
49.09

14.89

13.21

122.98

208.79

1,581.92 4,203.34

--

34"43 lakh forwhich expense wise bifurcatlon is not

\
(\r

/



lndosolar Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements For'Ihe year Ended 31 March 2019
( all amounts in Rupees in lakh, Unless C)therwise Stated)

31 INCOME TAX

A components of tax expense (income) recognised in profit or loss include:

Current tax expense:
lncome tax of earlier years

Total Current tax expense

Deferred tax (income)/expen se;
Relating to origination & reversal of temporary differences
Total Deferred tax expense/ [income)
lncome tax expense reporterJ in the statement of profit or loss

B Components of tax expense (income) recognised in statement of OCI:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Deferred tax charged to OCI

3r..03.2019 31.03.2018

2.32

2.32

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

The Company did not recogn se dr:ferred tax assets in respect oftax losses carryforwards, unabsorbed tax depreciation
carryforwards, provision and allowances and rrthertiming differences as the future profit streams were not probablel.

t

1 rq f-'
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lÎ(E
l!to_llq
e.
j
J
L

o
L
o)

.C
+)
o

G
!
a-
J(,
qJ

o
(o

o-
,i

Itrl



m(orr\q
f\O

jg
lo

CL

i.
.l!
IE

o(J

o
th
6

E
q,l
x

o
-g

f\lrlq
FI

ooqn
f\ (O

Ec
AE
EI9r
iEo
EH

o

=

Tc
a5
ET
9E
#$
cE, c

G

E

U)
OJ
CJII
bo
.sv':vl

rhP
(U
c
o
-o

.9
Po

E
oF

I

ti
!

ovt
LP6
OJiE,
-oo€ C(uYoJcY --o oJ

o=:
e-ilFEEd
eOtio
-^E.EFS
LqsL.LOJ
Oir-c3,9 6

t
E(!
bo

Y
<

P

(,,

o
-o
c
.9
P
(E

E
L
o
l-

OJ

C)
-o
E
L
(u
I

I

00c
oJ
L
o

o

th

9q
o€
-o oJ

orF
o=trbFC
or=
eO
Lg
G'C

+9
Ot;r-cou) O-

G,Po-
5t,
(D
c(,
L
L

66KE
oE>.=

66i

E9
L-

P
P

==de
eF

a-(o
;3
Po=
J rn(rv

(!
L!

,!

Ovt
t^r

I

GIP

(9

=tio
E,
t^

(Il

Cr

.c;
UIL,
Gi

>
m^
EEEio
E,;
L O)(! .!2

E=
99
t6o',
t-u1Jc
L-
@'
ksst(!J
ut .=

GOJ'o9
=i h=o, EE

.! gE
GO:
=gu
!pEAA:cZ-.

Oo!l
CN

oi(o

Olrlcl
qr
r\

E
o, d,99c
hBEb
>o.
o



E
.9
(!
o
tr
J

E
o
d
t!-

cr

r^c
o
(!
c)
E
o
o
)
oz

E
q,, 0)u0E(Ea

h9
=b>rCo

'6
c

a5
E8
9E
iEo
PH

o
E

(IJ

E(!
o0

v
<
L

I

(!
Po
(,
.C
.9
(E

(o
Pq
(9
e.j
L

(!
o-
(9

(E
C(!
o-
L

I

(o
P
o-
I(,

=o
E.
Q

li
1.9
lPl(o
IE
lbtsICt .-
lq10
la
l-o
lo
lo
l>
IJ
IO
Ir
lqJ
lPlx
loJ
Ior
lf,lo
t;
lqrt6lo
l(J
ltiIt

E
(o
6
.9
ts
(!
o_

!
o
P(,
E

-c.t
3
t

.9P(J
(!
t

g
F*

ul
o

.E
c
o
o

J
1'
o
J

o
t
trf
o
tr
.9
tn

o
c
o(J]

.E
=o,-(r=L
oJolX

E E sE s
HEgEE
'F tr \tr oF8g9-
# E" E

o
{t
o

oU
a0

F
.E0
J
o.t
E
0)

boc
T'
tr
G
IA

o
ti
o(J
cg
(!
to

(,

crl

c)
l\{

U
G'

frl ^
TETio
,!i fi
L. OJ$.9g=
o o.)

4.-

TAo(,
?; -E*rcc-
O'"
F. -cgr
d3J

(,l .:

GI OJ
';'il oJ:: otrii=(JiE

.!: o'I
-r.c!g!_

-s9H8;E
9g(ua6:gio

.!l
=oJVU=L
9L.-.1oJolX

E E pE s
HsEET.# tr >rtr oJF8g g'
# E" r

c
.9
Po
o

oU
ooc
s
.s0
J
OJ.:
C
OJ
OJ

(,
I

.l..l----

cr1

o
N
-iu
IE

]i

m



m
14
@\t
ct)
rn

oq
rl
@rl
+

oq
@tt
(o
FI

oq
Ol
IJ1
r{
.i

E
0Jouoc(!e

=ot9 u)

=b>C
o

!
(J
(!
o
o
rl
,;t

qoi
ot+ (E
0,, ol) (U

k no
-c Ln r'{.3€-;XmE-o*gdoo'b

a-Z r 'n,?.t39tro)x(I]
.(' 

-$. 
i f-E8b

+'3 = c;+ cr'Yz

(J
(!
o
o
F{

6
&.
r*
OE
.^ F{ (J

u8 3
P dq

otOHl+rn-ui
5or.rl-E(,dtnts
q=* Bc0o5:
..o N 

=
=oftt 

6

sB3!(E(Od) 6'l ,^'- >

ri=-\: \\, 
1qr '-lc

o
L
OJ
o-

I(!J'=)
o
0l)
oc
l!
E

OJ

E
oL(F
'o
o
0)(J
o
L
t

.9,P
a(J
o
6'A \--/
o.P

_lI,-5 :i.UC:
cd8
t/,9i
.ie 6.EU
(uoJ
fI l:tJ +,
t--

'a60J-.
ll c)(E =:>(o()>
.- ft,r-l v,Loo

Ie6
O-E
(U +.tlo Clr0 !,tO Lltl ot
C)O-
a-- oJ

U1 -0, .=qJ6
ii .e
nlcL- (!
dt^

ootr,r9t,U
$EO, rE

ur9G'I
(ci 'd
'' -c€; ant3
9E
=(!co

L

o.Lte
o-tiY
<G

lflo
leI(!
IE
lelct;10
l>l.et--l-olrot:
lrol>
l(Etslo
t;
lorl!IXl(u
lor
l5lo
lPz,

OJ

o
o
.2
1J
oL
o
th
o,F
L
(D
o-
E
OJ
P
(o

o
L

'=
ti

.9P
L)
l!

o
F

=oE
lt
N
od

o
oc
(u

o

o
G

..trla
o
o
u!
!
-g4

.1'
=auV U= L

-,rtu.-O(ul:

E ii sE s
HJiEEE
'F t: !rtr oE[!g g -
g ii" r

c
.o
P(tr
Lo
o-
L
oU
oo

E
.90
J

o
.ts

oo
L

(n

c)
N

(J
(o

E
fn^
zlPo19Ei!
fifi
s0Jo.9
#E
slI
i5
,93
;ar
{JC
E: -\Gr-
LC
sr t
Gi J
ul' .=
o 0.,';'i o=-

EPd
.E o'I
J-C{:
.gL
oo:

=pLJHc,E9g(o96:
Eio

E
ooooE(E-
hg
=b;r o.
o

3
o
CJ
!
$
q)
P
oc
(u

0.,

(!
a-
f
(9
\z
cri
j

OJ
+)(!
J

(o
P
o-
=(,
t
-
L



t,CO
OFI!ogN
o
.Fl
Emo_c
>ro
9Hi>
o

oooo{o
OOOLnT\
cir;^id.i
r-l rl

(o
N
oi
N

E' C''I
0)FI!,otrN
o
Emo-c
>r c)gEi>
o

oo (\lc! o'!
oo

ooeq<t sl'
ri

ltt

oi

xo
o
.g
e
ovl

vtI
o
oz

IA
L

s
3
.c
L
(o

CL

3
a2

E.fl $$€=e(U
->(DUe
=o(u-iD6'=Je 6t>-Y+,'Il o
b'o ti 3 .3ts9;iEE
EEJi E5
^^__^^lo -o () E oJI--l

--..'.:

----,, i>*i
\
{

)

.j-*

tr
o
G'
q,

J

E
o

G,
tn
L
o
H
T'
J

r
o

o
trt

tn
m

o
P
(l,-5b
3€.
(I,,^€(I,=

19(oo_lE6ocUo
oP.co
!f,
LE
o(E!
.296o
(o
-o L)

E€'c
o-o oP(J.o(!+)

o
OL
EEo
>oJoc

6LCLe.O'0erE
!-o (!
((,tioooPa,6c
--0J.=oE()20
Poru
oosP(uo(E
E 7) tr6 IIO L
LLrgO
ooJ_Js6t6=iLc EX .o
!oooh
n Q'ii 2p 'o.o EOJ C;; H: A
X >o c9 .!E o
: 3q EF 6; iLLT(! oo: 'I
ro ;9 ?
ir-.Hco
faoQ(9 6r !J ,E8 d P
cci + ,5; P E. lrJ '= ,:t) .- c JP E
=7co.!a^t = o99 9 tr
o 9.1 .'E 6 ?E '= os u 6J o. a2 C '.:
sU-qrfo E i=d g €uti=\1L
;=,a-PPtr q :;o o c(!F.::pCO
c:lIoo!1u
e E .13.= E 5
= o ,:.= ; I_LtlJ(L
.L(EJ=fq.(!., '.i' E 330JP,J-
-c o .::f s PP

li s E ;!E : EEvLl-^VLLX (o = +.Y .cr odZ 5 S J?E E EE

ot
Ct
N
..cl
QI

G
E:

lr)^
-EUg!io
rntn
LC)(! .!2g=
ooJ

t6
,93
yC
C-
L-st(EJ

.E(IJ'oq
zi=OEE

.!gs
rP!oo:
=P9
EHE!r 7i ,-czs

6
Pitr
OJ

0,
co
o
OJ

o
o-
EEuJc

b:
().Y

:=6oco.oP isE EEE)oaLE A: d
(o xt-6s.YuO)

P^9\PiE(tr =dtq0Jm ll c,]i
LdLJ.3a E:3
r'0-,r Ot0J

EE ;€i'o: 9'>POo ri I tr
Eb Edr'lulcr 6.-:i

r+lnNao



----f) 
,

-i \l
v

mq
(Y) O\\
C! F{mol
Fl rl

lt

(u
L

=t
flJ
o_
OJ'o
L
o

.=:,
P
6

oo
(g
t

o
oo
o
IJ
>Tr6orh ,. O e+ocoobg&
E3gori
LLro=
LtrPo;g
6oJ(,Eg,o=tr
g)gE
(tst!€
EEOoatr'|l! oluq) g co Eo-! +
-E = 

6

L)e1 t,1.E
EOrooroO

-Eq=
OOP

!!53H g
oo0.,o-E .cr>L E
;ai I

L

E'= se5 I
Cq oro'! -c>Up

llJL+.(!oc0Jc,>:
=n .Y
>Do,t q.) o
== o-

sE p
o!9 .Upvsttr-c o
OJ(Jec(EYoJ(I,)o-

-OL:,z€ a(u^ 
=.s- -.

[o E'u(!tr6.tr6-6
3; .4,
-c(o=
)= e 5

cE'x 'u .roo o6 9 -E E= fi g
.=,9i ol 92E;* E HgF; # e-:-'>cor-E.g€
cJ,^r-€s

o(9E
g

;q
o

:E'
c(!

o
o.
o
c
o
E
o
P
G
.a
o)
4

.s
o
IA

o
CLx
o
th
o
lh
q
f
o
E
(g
bog
'=

:
o

E'
o
.!
tr
00
o
UoL
t
(E

!

tr(!
CL

E
o
U
os

q)
Fl
c,
N
l:(,
fi,
E
fn^
EE
9G'

,!i 6
r, 0)(EV.}

*: 
=Or 0)

-c-Ct6fi
E-

EistmJ
(,t .=
(UoJ'o 0.)

E;=
o 

=d
.E or'I
gP!ooi
=+rvHoE€fl:szs

fnqmrg
Fl

0)
o
ta
ouc
l! Nl\
E FlFl
COoJO

PPooos zz
LLE (JoJss
G.)(U3 g ss

Pth?==

EE B E E
:t,/)(J!L619 d3
bh; i=
a, CLS = Y
=.-.='-!J,^';uo.(o.> or= -=
=!\ 6=bg6 z,P
3.= 3 |
o-fg 2

(Y) Nc\r oq
0O rnC(l rt

OJ

E
0.)

U
v)
OJ()
(t,
L

tn
,c
o
+)
G,.P
th
v)
oo
o
CL

E
tIJ
rF
o
P
U
q,
o.
Vl
C)
]L

.:: l

'6t
!:!l
,=lr:l
!l
:f,1::l'rlpl
trl
ol
UI

io
E
5

LL
ch
ON'F,(I,,
E6o-c
3.EoJo
6;
O. T,trcur ,i
EOc-c
lIo

*(E't Pn

96i=,
.:o

LFo.,=o
Jeb
C=olru.E
'Lc
0., o
o-
o-
E!,

'i+ J

Eq

Il\IN
lo
I!IOIE
l-
lo)
IE
lvl-
l'trlcl=IEl-lo
l-c
lo
I'o
IE
ll!l-lcloIE
l>
l9
Io-
loIP
lc
l.e
l=lrr
l'=lslcloIUlc
'Et
0,
T'
E
(J

E

1'tp
bR
OF{o, 1r!>-c
PCE(!
EElt

!,3or9r{
bR
l!F{
.Om>-e
PcEo
b=

lJ-

tt

f\ O|rO 0O
Nrl
N



! @l ' or ooHi os

? F}I K_
rE ; (Jl

E sgl
.}ul
.L FIJ drl
PI(!l
LIYIE ,,rl ,,\
;- o .{l N

# Eil N
tr 

= EIi E gl
O slc 6lE HI
ol

I

I

G'o
o

o
t^
]A
oJ

TI
tr
o

o
CL

o
vco
E
(u
PX(E(!
PPvl;;iE oPEtqon

g
E'XPO lr'H E.! p6 a)
tr E-- L

fl f Hguii Efi
Y -AH H g ii E gH- 3I;Eilb!,I E,lS'E!: E:

u
0)
6'-
o.
E
o(J

o
J
io
(E

.:
Io
o-

o
6-oi
-croh
|!(!r-d
ooL-C
CLp
llO
clP
v0)coothtr-cOU
oy
ta l-

N
Fi
N

sHfrs3j353 g $
$

CFfOtOOrr^
OtOO+C.o tn S

^{ OI tO tn F{ an.Ss- - s I
E
o
trg

o-

.gn | | | d)(o r I

au\ cr)N
39 nici
<er
g
CL

v
0i
t
6

trcE
clo
rF ifoa_oloE

=5rJAgHE=
E.=sGE-E e I !fr
Fttrtrrc'i5m^ c bo .E (E

z! C U c - OHO O e.= .= ()ta 'E 'iB B E,fi,; .s EP P b-!= E .Ep € r
o b 5 qoE E Ei+ o .E I g IFX J .o(E (F .E:
!v;:rmboboo!4 i j5c c -t+ --= r:E :E:PpeE
E: o - 06 (E (!6oE

E€ i {H, ,q,t { {EE*r; E:i=UEEE:orsE;Ei.HB P ;X'=:ib='Ea;bEH

Ef; s Esf EEi,: ;i iEEI
J-c!

*9d d

-EEEL) 6:=s:,!

./:

I



\\i
\t--Rl

'i=!
=.:

3;
EE
EPo-t
Hg

U r1 {HI H Bg
_3 !i Ei EE
= r? El EE
+ ':= z, l cr
I ;J gl L 6I E sl ;:
. C, ml c.(g3 '! I eEd lg I Ji!
do o- I ;Efi +6el x !r
- t: .a or I F .!

E s<il 3 iHI rI El aE
E fi gl 

-sE*. E #l Eg
.t I OEE I =>E I EE-ol; I EE(u-(,
a rcU
iE oqr
oJ c-c'o oF
.g E EPjjL o a.9n ! O-Pq=slrE
or 6 ,q=Horvb!.j: & o.r $reE.()L
'PPCO,otrrooo(u:c.c L' ag':. b E=
8 cL -6c rt g.S
.G,vr=qJtg (E 

-E(ntll Epq 6 P.E:E A ttlE : .43
.3 (E PboJ o,, so
f ; cPt o..9 g o_

IE .EE EElr. b€ e E15 FE E;IT H H' i=:i e c oJ'ArEL(r(Jo., o E fr'-trg:E Pb =EilJr- - 
= - (I(,)0ro;gcrti= f ! fi

1

@

56
-9(J
"9T'
o
(o
<f
o
o
tr
o
OJ
E

oo

o
N
olt
E
q,

CL
oth
&
o
(r1

c
o
ri(!

o
CL
o
c
o
G!
o

E

=()(!
q,

.tr

o
tL
1A
o
EI
o
oo
ll

oolt
vlo

.C

f
o
(9
*

tn
C
.9

6

tro
6hq=ruLtu

h f A.EEEi F: PE;O I ru t'- LF..@-pO:Eg E 3ilt€*-E E ?'Eg
9--: : l,l.S o

8gB B Eg8cooobo'cotr
.-6-^tJ'-

o - o rg o.E o.F.E: : ::'EhEE t tiiq)
€'gE "e €HtEEgr e sIE-
-FLLL- cEg'3 3 .3jo6
u*ro ro 6:u
.EEE E E:.E9U-::.:9

e 9 c c c< c;5'B 'S sE:(uLvv(o9
65:--O!O'=!2.9 .9 .ro-o.SEh; hEEEEE Z EE;oouuOirro

:/-
\

9-ry''

o)
F{
c)
N
()
o

=m^
TETiofi;
L. 0)rs .9
EE
OOl: -ct6
Clo
t-u+.r Cli -Ol-
F: _i
Ii *(gJ

Ulr .=

ali 0J';''!. (u
:o-zh=qrEd

'=t!L
.E o'I
s9i9;E68-
96_-s=-.E



rJ.) F.. +-<f C) ul
N t.. (o

xlR >s :RQO O Olr)ln lo !n
dd d o

Fl
oq
(oll

o
.=
oc
o

co

=o
.!
o
tr
o
d)

Eq, oEH HPb b:oloJ'o o

E
=o.,E ru8(! Eg.)E i=E

tJ

e ii--
fO iE E:
-(J-PtA=co:;
-L.5 il(oH leti5 Jls

.t
(t,

o

{,
c.,

J

E

P

)
\o \o \omo\o\o\- ooo; qqc

5 u)cnN
o
N

.g(,E
o5OJ*>o
Oro
'oBo

rl

'rJ
PJto
--o
oNr:;,0E*5 555

6! E F' ;3:9ssvoz.
\o t/)

B9
O'-

E6'(UQ
=lo6O

P1E
CI E.r,: 5 5 5aP6:l aqq
:i=t LomN-bs

:o2Ao
v>-=

IE'
IO,lc

oa
.s
o
!0c
t!

.tr
U

c
.9
CL

E
=a,
6o

.E
(u
b0
tr(!
.tr(J

:o
q,
tr
oo
.s
0,
u!
tr(!
.g
L)

c
.9
P
CL

E
t
]i
t!
c
o
u!c(!

-tr
L)

6
C)N
-trI
o
E
1A

frl
(!
t

E sll :s >R

eRll ;iq.l t\ (o
E .cl

E EI5 fil
.?- ml3lelgIYI
E 6EI ' I

: t Rl

E€I
0, l[lco 

=lE ul
C Fl I

E ff,l
ol

I

I

:eP
(I,=

EE E
€6 R
iil

-*tr -cE(!()
L

,(o- tg3# 
=ag !;3 r

-CE.[
.=.E &
I irrUAbouc
o

.C(J
o

-
;:
(E

.!9

=o
(I,a
o
0)

o
o.9€

E:

.2c
PG)'6q
troJo-cltF

t

(E
OJ

st
st
(lJ

o
.ct

#ear> >o.
=-msfiEoY
= 

b!=Flt < -*.n
=J

$*
=3Ea
gE
pO(Us
d1

vtactro=
P=
CL=t^

5Ci u .E
I 

=t 
]-2 E'( E, q., E.9 ,.'E 

=
Eti a 3
,g*E €.
'-.)'i(!;gEP B

^eLULF

9!io 6.!.I o O
IL L] LN

1

.9
CL

E
J
vt
tn

ol
c)
N
t:(,
o
E
fn^
EE
AG

fi ,;
r. G)(u.g
*: :
o' q
_c!t6
,93
;ofC
E-
@-E-igt
.EJ
tl.t

G0)'oE
E Ed

.= lJ- L

.E o'I
J..C !
oo:

=!vHqrE9E(o9A=cirs

-1''



I-\-o
-\*

.F

Lz

(u
tn

OJ
tL
)<
(u

.+:
(u
(:
(u
ll
au(,

ll
CL

t:
trJ

I

f-.
c\l
c,+,
c)
2i
.E:
vl
O)
o0
GI

3:
gr^crn
Gl Ft

B+
'- O..)

Si)(EC
J>
u.-
PO
(!*
o. oo
o.c(!P
r:EolEH
J(JE<
LL

=. oJI9,o)
o=

sg
gr,
L'6
y-O
iE(ogE
Oe-o3
OC(uOJ
>r o-Oc

EUoE
tro)
.9 oo'rC
9Po
Ol,

bE
?:E()oc

o
-(f,UN
bs
s(!
E=>i

fn

r,)@coqce
0OOOrNN

o)

ER
bs
gl!

E>>fi
(n

ta
.u

(,
L
(o
o-

lElo
l'-I o.)I o-lI uolI cl
Itsl

ol
o-l
orl-l
rol
=lclclol
-lxl
oJlCI
arl
f,l
-lol
O'' IEql8il

EHfrI
:EEIU C LJI

=;glo s xlt\ Z. LilI

l*!?!'rimN(\3l ; I R ; R n :iol cn
NI

E trI
{ sl

ul
F{lml

I

',lF{lol
^rlr €l

* gl
UII

sl
I

I,
o
L
0)
CL
bo

.E
L
o
CLo

.Eu)xg
OCtr<
LUE6.=a3o
tA -CPP
LLoo
EL

=crgOnE
uJtE llau 'i
cPotrno!b;

$* r s s q g E fl

C
.9
og
tt
o
f-
o
tr
o

-ct
Eoc
oE
og
o
CL

J

l!

(,

Or

Cr
N
-c:
QI

Gi

m^
Ug
E' i!
fr6
L0)G.9
9=q9
!5t6
ol,
:-u?c
a-
F-c6r
e(I,
GJ
P-ta.:

GO'E 
8.zi=oEd.ts:- -.Eof

oo:
3,!rEo9,l(!ttE:ci ro



E{s
bR
l!t{om

I(u(J
Eo
5E

F{ lO
\q
co (o
@N
NF{
rl
fO

(n
t\lr{tf
fo

!,9o:a F{
bR
(IlFl
oon
oJU
El!
E>l!

t'\ ot
=q oe
lr) (o
co ro
rl Fl
Fl

UO
oo
f{
crl
n0

]hLs
5()
t
o
o.

(o

:oc
-oJCE
8,6

50

E
o

jr-

i-\F) 
i

',1

I

: ::-i

th

l!

"ag.o
90
-2O- ia

l!r!(,tr8E(r5
f,to9cal rE

z=ob
k.9
d,olrOz

z
lrJ

E
(9
tu
tn
lr,t

00

t
o
o-
lrl
E

r)
rO
rO(
z
r3

E
E,
€l

?_

E
o
o

-o
O)t
-c(uFP
PJco
0Jo
EE
bOo
od,

33
P-efro
f!

+*
LTEoqo-too
>bco-
Ooe>ihoo_(oE
ol
EUte6tP
ct/}qr g?()E
6-.-=
€9

=iIA(uL
=oTE99;
F.-=

!?6E !y6
cn (!.= (!
Fl o doq)A=(E=
NOJC'ur: USE
$ E>.9
fl, 

= 
qJ+

= rf FFr b.9 f,od: oo^ oTE 5= E
t, (o == )fi6 Eg;r.O ,iflt.g 5 r oc,'= ;a-, = ET E
9t P E=E
-# x .E c'=gu-ooJ

*$ $H EES Pd EP:- , P€
E: & >h.= L
dlJ=POJ
E,(oL(Oo_g; .E EBi,^vLa-l(J
E[i E q;'=
'il oE',ol:

EEj € rf:
cE.=v=>.!/,.5 o' o C t c->
J.CP-O,,c)(I,(EsrlEUgcS9d & orLcs;E E f839tsru!i=s h

\-

!,€or{:oo
trN
0,. r.{
Emo-c>(,qFi>
olt

r\
ct?

N
Flrt
Fl
m

tr cn
O, F{:oo
CNo
emO-c>L'
shi=
o

(o
a
N
N
m
rl

vt
(t

L'

t
o
o.

Pco
E
b!
o)
rh
r
6
CJc
ttt
f,
-o
0.)

-ol(Dlul
LIolol<ul
LI
a,,l>tol
-oltgl
0il
Pl
cl
orlilcltul>t(I)lLI
rolcl
Ll<ulTI
LUI



oo

o
N
F{
m
.9

t!

=tE
ti

gl
o
N

m
.E(J
l!
E
(!
6<l

mrOLn -)n qn Em rO,+ Lnololo-1 sr
rl

-g
..El

.g

.}
tro
boc
tr
o(J
1A

tr
o
cl.
E
o()
o

!

t(J

3
L
o

oc
o
E
(U

o
o#c
o
L
(E
:,
(9

E
G'

cct

(!

P
!
oE
(!

E

3sqU
XB-
€P
xJ
PHg6
EC
8=
!(t
ot'90
LC)
-oJ'sr _c'r_l {:
,.rr fi
;5 ,= 6',-\ ls i:- o+
'1 E3
=.=N.Yo;o.
:Hg{(o cr-'E.CF
,g5g
-O .O (J'

co
E
OJ

OJ

oo
.=
q
o
o-

E
oP
f(J

+o
15

(I,

E
c)io
(u

o
uo
orF

Jo
lI,

l*l-
llr
loJ
lEt6lflr
ET
o
o0!to
E
o
tr

o
o
tr
c(!
CL

E
o(J
o
-c

t

.E
(E
bo
o
IA

.E
o

i.

': 
i-l

\-i
6, --.-{J 

i'= \>- i
L\

.Yq\

oL
o.
oc
0.,(J -F-
CI
0J)
L

o
(!

Ri 8H 8rll .d+ rriOrO)O
T. tf
rl

C)

(u

q
f,
c)
L)
c)
(U

c
G

G:\,
mr
ror
Fi
lri:
r{

t
e,

od
Fi
Rn;

=:cE9
-cE(J-

ES
E8

t
etio.t
c.i ts(o:

or, -cd,P
oo
Pto

oo 6^c;'Ec

(JP
E 0.,rob
c'E
L(JO

9o)
GE
o*f
Nts
dd8 g
dG oNb 6
:ct Zr '.'3 "E+o iu

Y6I E,
(E:-
-H6z.?n P

L
-'b o
LLhoru.E
ez E

=P\6L3$ buti (J

to<f Y:T h
C- rAes .q 3e(E.=E .-

J;x .s t
>o-=8B _b. 5

=00.=c
;9

,58

o
E
o
q
J
(J

o
(!
E

o
lt
G
q
o
(o

E
o
s

.g-o

.;

.s
6

=fn
m
rJ')
st
O)
ro

ro
n
@
l\
F
.fi
N

(E

!

;

t^

o,
t
IA
o
x
o
!,
o
L

o
o:o
T'c
G
Ul

c
o
E

P
t
tr

o
u
tr
o
tr

o

o

o

o
t
th
t!
tr
o
L

J
t)
Ic
oz

cl1

c)
(r{

()
ro

x
r{
fl)^

Ug
Ti!
tii(,
r. Q,)d, .!2

E=
o q.)

FX
oo
t-u
flCc:-
O'J

h.cst
GIJ
ur .=
Gi o
';'':i o)
:: o

=i.=oJEE

-L(UoJ..c!.#L
oo:
=x93eE€f;:s:e

E
.s
C
.9
6'6
(1,
E
(F
o
a)(J

(!
(J
L '{:\./'6

,9
o
OJ

P

(o
-c
ti
OJ

.9
OJa
c
o
o-
tr
o(J
OJ

q
P

(q
!
:,
ahc
o(J
d
o
(E
U
9o;EE(gE
0J v)
-c o)

-,PP.p'=p
c'6o00'ii o
6>x
=LU(o
t^ liE3
o.r 9

c'oo9
E ,t)orc
fr'Iv
CO I=Ul( (J

E3o
9F{
bR
GF{
O rY'l>F
OE
€lE
bE

E'9o
:r{
bR
{!FlO{n
ort
+j lE

b=

sl

rYi
]n
sf
o(o

roq
co

(n
N

G)
.(J

o
o-

6
P
o



6
ot\
(n

u
.E

=
G
IA

tJ')
()c

t{(o
(n

O'l

o
N

m

I
(!

=o
1A

ti
o
fu
v
o4

:g(g.(U
FPtrg E_(r< f,
90 5
-uJ 6
.ys>6 E B9> E>!v _ OOf ,o E -
P8 6E*N o r
6L^
op'C)Hs9 'EU
cJ<cro
i= o.cP(J-ao o6oE ia)
€o-qbot-o E-L 3t ;'=

(u E (u c-o
O O-o tr rs
-c c - o >'oPOtvtl1J.nt .. o G)'= o- uOPLL^

! 5; E 6 s.!g^!g+:PC

H Ee :E EiVlJUc1^:eU)!
=-u=tr d,-u-it,OE *il 3E 3'i=
= E T EE F'?g '=F 6>6: E;i
* o-: arrc:d or!1
=-cco-cru F roc! FJl

l9p
ILt.-LC

6
E
oL

o
o
Lo

o

6
CJ

OJ
P

o
!
P

d
Pc:
o
E(!

G
a-
U
'T
o-
(J

F

!n
<f
o
P
oz
(u

OJL
oq
.D

t.ooo
N
g
U

o
LU

v)

P
C
o)
E
o-
o
o
OJo
OJ
t
L
o.
L
o
Pc
LLI

E
.=
I
c,)

d
(o

E
ta
o
,9

o
(u
:l
!
$
o
#
o
+)
q)
o
CN
rn

E
cort
sf
o
P
oc
q,

oE
t,
b0

-l .cCOC
coL
--l!

o0Jtr00
OJG
ar iie,x o

-_ooo 'oJ

b€
!9 orE.=
hE
oo.
9uoE
oo
PP
b0 ho

tri;g(E
o0JLL
qq

ccooJEE
.=3EEEEoo(J(J
LLoolJ. u-

q
3o
Et+-

(o

oL
(o
t

o
o
o
-cP

;op
o
L
q
p
o
tr
E
(o

ooc
(o

'1,
(!

o
p
o

+j
C

=o(J
Q
(o

(E
.,:
G,(J

o
E
o
P
J
(J
oxo
o

o
P
oo

:E(!
E
o
L

69
oi:
Ec.=o
cs
EooyUL
oq

EF
P=o'uodE
GN+rc

afiUUJ

(n

c)
(\,l

ti
ft,

>:

(n^
TEtiliE
[:6!- (U(tro
s=
o(Ul:sts
ef;
ul-UCc:-ot-
Ls
ft t(I|J
(,l.:

-.6(tOJ
'C; q

E;i =o ir (

.E o'.,
-r-tr!
!9;8;E9ts.o96=cio

lc(t
lF{lo
INt.
lF{
i1'rt-c
IC,L

(!

(o
ta

or
F{oNl

air I

-cl(Jl
LI(!l

=l-l(El
-l<l

sl
r-.
F.t.
r..
nl

I

thLs
J
(J

G
CL

L
o
E

=o'
-u
oc
(o

g
L
i:
E
o
o,
o
L

3ri:=o

00 00qUl
tO rl
rN,!i

crr
C)
!f
rl
r{

!nl('r
(o
oo

=----P
-\.i

'.1
I

:a-
I

\:--



--

(o+Loo(oO-qrFN e: ;p't/)tE
(J C.;.: !

n#(!(g
lrt E.= o
= 

gts i

=, 
(t, or .!2

= 
E e-C czoc!c

L 
= 

9:g : E-lr o
I'LP6 : boa bo

fi E EE €.2 H qr.E ELCA-PJ>
E- 8 EE ;
E q -o! o
tlqrE(JOS h^OO tuE P gE E; E Et A-

^PL! +: €o oLYCE.E(l,<LP
o v +H o
LLL-CO or d: lc
; E .oA Eo-c(E,to(oo.o; E EE E(U o -r'i {=E o rYE n E.E 3(u 6 -F =.= ! c-l (l,

oo(u! E eE 3
=LU-C<LL=u E EB 3P,
9 6 E'F !Ei E 6.=. e LJ 

"i9= 
; ts.^ - s

: : q.ro o o.tu g .o'a o hA9PL3 = E'= Eg-sgEt:tr?Grfl!t\tJfO9 T E3E H;! (E tr 
=N 

c (!
u - O,Yg =El15-dr(J\J'giE {lE EEEsi :il i EE

=sf gli! :EE=E .etps gg
H'= e iu8 ro.E
9 o, o- p iAX gE
e!1i ?<tc ;5EtE Sil E :i.=(!c ori:- oo-3sr r:tE 'Eg
EE! ='fii E.E';EE *:i B EEf€E R!l I eE€bE sii H >Eiooi :nr+ tro62 O,^E r, (U oJt,bstr iii S EfEeg, PTI E, ,E+o.,P'g- 'r.t:E Eg

-c C f, f -. i 
^ 

FFoo oEd o6

:*=H ; ;flfi
ESFE I EEE;[
sg#E a IrfiEf:*E := 

gfEiE€ s€ r EsErE E E:EEgE!€5 E rli;frp'9:;E T EE!,So-cEE E .S5.9€trfi.95''o -^ E;E:;ciE; E sEgEg

E$gE ES EEEIfjEs€ I,= Ii;*s

o
ro
o
N

o
Fl
o
N

Y-*'/

ol
a
N
(l

Gl

=m^
TE
91 (!

fii ;
L. 0Jc, .I
9E
oo.c<t6
o6
t-Esc
Ea
@'
t-c
oJJPOTEJ
u! .L

oqJ'qg
E EE
'=t!L
.E o'.,
JEZ
oo:

=flYHc!t€*sE2.

.2

si
o
\f

rl
.1
rn



-*4-*.
t\

IJ

-!P o:J Fr
luR
aO F{Orn!- -c(u(J

+J (E

tiEu.

N
rl
.i
d
N
rri
Fl

N
o)
N
N
O
oi

c)
C)
ciO
N
d
rn

to
o)
o
F{
sf
ro

t,0r^
!ld
t; R
L.i
Gl Fl
Gr (n

Or u_.c L#(E
bE
II

sfo|o)rl o) Ot
tci +Nl/)r O rnOOIoo
cd' j r.,r'
F{N

N

o;
r{
@

st

tlll
II
ll
I

t:

l.
I
lq

- 11
L l;(! l)

= t!.e l.;r liE IL

sl
al

60-lq ds Iq Lr o IH 8# I3 i*'e IIEE EH I- P = IE 5s 
IB ss I.,LtlOl

t^ 'ro.= 
Io .i:E 
IE iE I

-JoI{ ;= Iccx--l.U ci "= Ic EI E Io s Ha IE Sse Ia P.s: It, Es6 I

= 
6ie 

Ic Hjs 
I

f f UxE i= lP

= = ==E 
i3 IE E E.i: ri I

= > :g: i:
u od P bI: l

= E E 3t6 ji 
Ii f ; E:i i] I5 ts E =69 i; I! E E EEg =; I

= _= = EEE u Ii 6 'a :-gr- o- o- .= .r- ol .? .g I

=_E E ESE ii E I

ctz (trN

Io
.c
CL

E
oI
tn
E
0.,
.=
(t
c
.9
o.
o(J
x

UJ

N
<l

o)
F{
c)
N
&()
L
o

=m^
TETt io

,f;;
r. 0Jo"9
st 

=:l etaoo
'r3q-yc
tr-'
.g*(!J
P-(, .L

IE OJ'Eg
=H5orFdv,=-

.!GroJ-C!
(o0:

=PvIioF69.
Eh=Ezs

-
tl

"/



=\f---l

l\:

(!
6

q
o
E

G
l!

cxt
F{
c)
F,I

l:(,
fl,

5;
UI
Fl

o
o
s
IL
(!

E
v
F{

ft1

@r{o
N

(J

l!

q
F{
(Yl

o'r

o
N

U
(g

E
6

Fl
(Yt

O r\N

fi 8D ' $EEt
cri ui ,eirtN

4tr)Nlr\\ry=t
NONc\t
rr') 1.. ,O! utorn ul+ oo' o'r{

r{

a!

o
!(!
oo
tr';
oI

9(o o r\N, fln n ,gc.l
!rNNr:or\g)q ln 15oor\N m ,+

tnu)oIN, \\1n
NC)(\I(\LnNo)rnoln tn
doo- d

r-.1
r{

F'l Ch +Fl(Oo
t.r) f\ U"t() !ou)st r{

NNOl(\.I
or(l)oo
@(uoo

JJJJ

5Tci 9loE
-c.9-8s3s

sF I ! p,
5: p P S €#. 6 e? i E ts;#r; ; EE F s ,€*

atHs E j! i S sqaf HH;Et.t jiS S E=s-'
EE};es ii ; s* EsEss

j: 5 "*E:-ei

*
E\.P8S

06g
a.s'eNE
3R

-g =' 
5Is s g

H$ S EEi ig b

H,r .EE $
.S d d.S d
ri

q
3
o
E
(u

OJ

o
c
I
h

*
o
5
6
L

E
(u

tr
.g
q

E
_a
.L
o,

E
P

bD
.s
P5
U

.E
q
.9

=!,(o
.h(D
l! '-s3
=(otJ .S
llts
c.i !oE
nq
Zbr
V,.ol!

G(J'6
J"-O >oo' t's
:-tlo1L--rJOa .-L
Zt(!lri ar O-=-\zJc(r) 5 E8

t 9 pE
g 2 rlq
:JoroF:>6:F-e.-
-H3 E >e
EPv..l:CL9q6'.O
E@2qo,3.8 a .9 f,>l th Eq(uoYe:.-
-trC tJ1 iE 9fr
F X t o.i
Lvo-ooA-Etsu91 

=(J(utn -Y (J aoeES 1 .s9
0rJqPitr-'2tr^6= tr *{:+r(o-Xog: 1r1- E (o

A.= F < o
a1r'=

figrr.rojj
..=i;ercHJiXo.rgfi: E 53

.Egr .s = E>
:'i; 

= 
) : ooe5 
= ;Ugef z EE

EG,VTEF

(Yt
<l

-l
I

;-1



-"-- ,.];

'J-

# # p fl# # Pd -.,s E E s-; i t*E
OXE-cI-EE g H *; # $;$oooF?:FEEE I F Et E lEE!O-vorEEvH E g f E E E E ri E E l+ E ig+s E i ,=r € EiiE E E ;E .o >j= o€ E : ;E E g+3o- E H ';= 3 :'- 8Etr: G ; db q, F E ga { e €a f ; t! f(!ci\ s ; tE ,; I ;.53 ." .E p* .g # iy E6 ..o = b.= := f.j: c-coloooE ; - E': H s ii iF f e C# i i;i i$i I s ; Efr F:I;EEF o o * hU _0 ;.r 6 E

o o r E .Eg , i.!b, usJ-F E f a ET E sll *Eco vi . : .1 il ; : ii E E
R g E E g6 a $ rr o-.. E * ; ; Fi E sti EteE5u-oro o c- x ; o! 

= 
E ti fi E

q .E E E p t-q 3 eii [oH g i I F *'g e! 5'=i i E! + i p ,^ E PE, #fiE+l * &# E E E E p ;EH EgE:HEb -i s E E e p:3:X a'- E>E -B -o g i g 3;e ;e ! &, E be E ; 5 F i =tI 
gEbE;-

0., >1 5 .: .: b E 9E Eo r -c ; o)

i g E E.J" i aE'5 6oEE 6LrtE € ; ig;; EfieIT}!E;t s E 'Pi.E U iH.E-E3i;;*ss ; E sgI s E*EEEtitis i H !!t B :_96 oI'tr,o:o.: 3 ; EE.h ; ;o;;$g f g IF .6 x !.E; 5 :e,EEETsFh-c. o :: P-o;
; ;. E dor = --E UetteEO) H EE E i3E ? :E;;;E;gH fr- i; t ;ig! rn r;i 5E[:Eg€ E 3E il EEFfi g EfE;EgErE; : Se E isg'& I IE= .0, E E iioE H 3E p:gsd E nEE HH;;F-Er{ a }P 'P oo_.., > 'r.g ;; tr p u 3to^ a; .:E B E s E y 6 E n,;? : '5. G :roi" o 'q;i g': -r'= g.i

(ugJootE : HE r EHEi E .F:q fl'rHE:g:5 E- ;5 = sqiF € .Hfp€ SErE;8n:o ar cE u E'5i€: P 
=oFt -F >iE v P

*B: t: a i;*.g: ErEEEqt{=E#r E iE H iEII ,: EliE e+="lEE,;? E iE _E *spe; fiii;=FE;eHuoo-i:oe oJ ro s i:=EE g .giE= o.e .P- Ei= o iif E ESBE yy E;EE;?, F.P'! r
Eg E EI B, CiS;;E sHf ' HEEi*EYOJ-.!=

#= E 5! ; i:lffi sP IeEe {oh+ o i q

-e, Y =€ e E,iEa Ef EfrEIEi:5gEEB -B :; E E1:HH Ee o';-p.-EeEEEE
Fs E 5s 5 b::EF P: rt2.3o !tr c ': L o

Efr; i EE FEiiEfi ;i *iiIIIiE+E:f E Fil aE - Eii*g EE #EEE-E; EEE e

EgI EE f E i f ir f : f { #E*5" JEE geE

-=ly
$



{.- qJ c E oJ o ,;.g := o, 0 oo qrElH ;F: {E ;i iEii '=
.EEgi iE* EE :s E;Pr#;gi *Ea €; a n [gEIEEggEfl IE.: ifi E F F;.;Ef. f #*- '3.i"9 60- = it o'r'

.r5l# ;E! e.l ! i! tHrF"-- 
ir=

$e[E, iEE EF E ii EEEi-:i
gE:gE ;Ei $E i g EElE iEE*=i EEi ;* H e HisE '--;5!sEiiE;H E ji ;t€EtIET; TEE *3 S ii i;;EEPEPg 5*; 9; 

= 
ni 'o'.=oe:f i; Ps'*=^ tsg t Ei +gEErE:*t -65U gr u E: :='*G

EEgf $ PiE ii E Ei FHEE* 
*--

Euo!=;*EF€;;i * ii FeEE#EEteE irt gE I : EFHq.E

EgIPIEHE Ii F I.H iEEEEeEst![ti;";I I i;l Efri
E*rEFigl* ir E r ti 3Eir
iIgEIEH:EE€iEiiEEfiEg;pEs:,': ;ii ;* E ij i;;fn g*EEgEEEHE# sE E ii E;EeH ;:;8," Es;E E: It ! 1r aE:*E EI:gTT;:El; HT E j;*grEk I3'js EEIBg aHE,r;fi ;E 5s ti n;EiF.uqlil "i,E;E:Eregi iE *Eri 

=E=;EE .8#fF E'EfE pi EE iii i:;E;8

EEiiIEEE[iEfEgiifIiggEE
*{ r+fri iI:EEE ifr 5g ir tiEiH; E,s;gg ErEg EE f] e; El s=s;ti(o o s,;,s g oEEE Qf 3c'i PP cr'::
6-;L:r; EPinl iisr rl [E iEii EEgi

EFg iIIf E $.i iI EI ${ -I€ EiiEE.tr q,, l? o ,i o .H P e ?'= o 6 F .f !': o o:3
if S *- Uf
EEE EEE;g; s.i E. TgC c€ E;E i.iEE!
E:3 SSE*;[ EIiEil fEE f F gEg E5;gi



'--t--"{) 
\

'\-- 
,\.1
\l
\i

:t*

-:

Pr;#;; g u rtaiEii b rE
xr L c '- ; o 11lEsEi, 3= EH:'EiE Sn Eeo;fi8 EEf
;t rE;i i # jq,E€rii gs soEOO)q/scq

tJf !:i '. g i
ereEEr PS;g;43.E; 6 E.eEb-iu,Lro'6

rs#E# #; igsEsE geE
3=.;:T Pfi Fr.ocot 

!53Fs$ag orr ?
.9 i .".3.s .& r €P6'Xc.,eo=.oUX;Eb iPE
EE6"-, .S rdE-. I€i ar sco-;O>oOc''cr&EEt E.U.E
p'+r; E e ; E it qr.ll= i or r oo

g*;asi g erI€;rE* s € ?5;[B'E'l S.EE;I j;*"8 3 E EE{qn"-l+6co = o uid : E c

iP;] HH E EI
9:t; 3r s BEErtsE 3; Ef5'i:pi ai;F
iEli EE EEgc.iii co E oE
f E>i S p 6 o iE3sr; ee EE:E;ii E I c p 6

=.;r,Er, -cErE;s. <s F E iEi*,nE' ; u Fg:E'!f sEE
?0.,-EP:-'do

iEEEE 3 pf
3 E c iS 5 o q;
.-..+ tI I ro t CP:.sE!- : E E'=oPo'c.YEoP
E E.F# E';
E€=EO6 i SgEicrb;lrp E 

=# 
Fs;855:;o:.ets9ii fr gE:

3sE:Eil e:E,:
;;E r * lr r; g € e
or9AEBi:P-uoror

E s !: s Ii: $ g g 
$ t

EInEEaii pan sc
E S T H E 5Ji $ E -E T E

<fI
Ln(o
F{

6l

si(o
dl(o
Fl
c.i

Fl
oq
lrlo
rn

o
cr'!
(o
N
l/)

Fr l*l djtit Rn lml ci\ Iclt 6

't11

ri lrl Iillx

Fl
m

9m(!ri<o<N
(!

ot
Flo
N
F{(n
.c(J
L
G
E
t!

s
q.lf
0)
o
U
o
L
o.
!q
(o
p
5
o
F
-cq
(U
(J
boc
Po
L
q)
o-
o
E
o
Lr
q
tr
o
P
G

.9p

=o
q
.e
Po
o
E
o
P
6
P()
q.)

x
0.,

(!

E
o(J
0.,,

F
oi
!
o
cr)3

iN qJ

"c!(Jo,
L-
6;:E.E
F{ T,m^ oJ

!! _-o
OJ@L16= 1l

lu(/) trO)Eo2u'<!->o
OJtuo'n

l-X 'u
Ev6OoslL 91 uool9 c
dJJ:
E-C C
O-yiErOTE- U

dt.'qq:Ii[ gfi
c=o(!'"t,6.ioo;

^r::4

tr-''-'-r!
=-HE Eh,sh:; 3 P 3;
Eg-E Hq;E9i .s_EF
-,6vltFC

b"
OE

6L.s6H
PLS

3EEs9€
c,tL
*oro9.'c
:o,lcoihd-rrE: EE3 ia5e P55 o55 E35

6-!p@pp9,,.,

=EC-iccaEE;'l(ur5r.l5f6-=E ;EE EEE 5EE!udEd-S6oor.o.oEL6-t tn



i

lJ E 
-t'-----'"t

t: O -'{*i
(oc.-Ll

i3 E Ee '/.o iE iPl2 eoro 9E €;c: L: _.s'i: q1.a q qn, . o ni.trci rE oEjl *I ba
[i E! ;-E )ii gr EE':.S, E n or=
o, d Eg Egf; Lb *6 6!s= 5: eE

-^ocFpE Y o or .E:- €H EX pr :::{9ege$ g; :e #fihsiarl g[ EE f qrorlo(osrN a E 9F ., oig ggst Hg ag s'EH r{- X= f H = ,ooou Ep 'id;
t> "Ht a;.q'ugl E.= tp'tcE ilP .o=.>888+SL*.EE ;u ':.et

eEX+$xEE ?g .,--8fig,N r{Frorn o:E g; pitpm .Yi oo' 'ri 
l\ I ',

n r{o,d r.9 eE 
='EEHFI-prcq5=.E

tS gE 'qfs
- 9 Er qt'=EHE =E sgiE'E lJe E6;oJiie iS ralr,o- ip ;93E? e'a En.s'69+-'lu=-
-.5_c(oFoXXbg 3 n.. 'ii o'tfE g$.g E;E

Lo.rplja.Sko.-o,>trEE+:<qi€! E;s iE$=*.Lo d q sP .ti<';E'P E"*5 IiE;EE ?€E il Sb:
EE F.r.= 3 pf #(oor ,nIl I iiI-c
t'5 < c E '! ' 4 hEs" E;€ : fi:Hf,;! ;,EP E ii ESEE str'3 E XIE.iEae=di; CPs i !r *3E3 E.-E 9 i! YE
+H dr =_o .E ,ii g 3UE E€E e E:Ai'rI eE.s I ri €s?E cr 5PE e :;96FE ,E EEH i" Ei IESg E g.*E Efi [;sgB oD - o.=i E .g 

=.U'; 
o o 't E o'r

rLee E EE* HE" EE€'ba(!Eo.9Ei E 5=I5=o r-c'
S,i E .e;;€$H ;.E*Er! ; S$9fi:Eq Ei:, E'[ :-qeij$€ uH=

E 613 :E R€#qp*.s r-loft r fi: I eticsse 3Ei't t= 9.tg :E 3*6._H:lEE .gEaP ;*utt ;E E;;Frf=*$E;o c.= !li:3 io E I .

:=*rsi; i$ tEE$$*g:c;r
sseEs :l ii gfirrf#li:sEs-oqJ

o

j
s3r.
.Ei{

=R
G
t^

@

o

(n

I
t!

=IE
o

.i
atl

=lor I

-lEIst
olol
ol
Gl
3lrlol'--lol
o-l
ur,l
.Elrlol
o..l
oJlLI
o.r I

-clelsl
:l
cl
oil
0., I.I;l
3l
EI
s"l 6'cl (!

sl .nol t
-cl oFl o

EEf eqEi Er.9& IEEF 8 fi
I6d 6 o'

:9e,'9eq!tr b Eoc.Eo.:ogE.s
Lo5O+,PEq :F uiiEI H Es? o'a E 6EEft' b Nt;e i E

!\PIoE2?,., ; Eoo:1E.;o
EpEg;;oo
f;LP-,=C
6{o€ io .E

;58: ii s
P>.fdtu€
i.i:L-.-6q;EE il HO-O-L.::p

c389 ti.E
O- g ,^ <) q

EtroJijr-o

EE:I ii !o:E0::ir?
.q '3 9l fl ;.rU;o.ii YEe;S t; 'i
€E-b; Ei €
O(E:OOC,ees 9F E: 6

s E# a : #88s: E;b0ocro:;
LP
'J-OO6s;E-"-"' E :-

;EEP : rld;Pgil.tsc,FPE&,*EE*E €;
:qeI I3
i5;p: g

"n ==-8t ; .>,E ;E#; e Eg(N.tY.F ;iosE f €EX EE;! P uE5 A ,o u I E -c'3; elI. 3 .er
(n^ i? = 

E.= F -F:
nE '' -o 6 o- X .Y-i;*.! .e fl: s s Elj.ig -o;f q t dEioOruo)LEF.-(U!o >.+r . E E ! l;gF E S 41r,b .qu; : r E .:18
-tri .o- oo - H <U o ''I otrx 6 g E ; = 5 i$ 3E; Ef eE; g :fe
6 @ o E ? !! : i 110-6&-q-=ol:.-tri o c i P € ';:od
P:. le, O 5 ; .E ijq
E* Es!#i fr ieI
8; v. l,9b b ; :*8:; E;}E T : :iTcg:iCiJrgo(oo!:Xi

s;;" t.#;EE H'i;e
+:.=aGt6!Pv-'ET; 5;E sE : le5,;: +f E ! r = c c- o

fic EsEti 5 ti E
EE3.s'#EEp # fi5



'+-

L-

L
0)

o
o
o.
E
o
c ./'(o \s/'o
c
o

o
(u

E'
(o

qq
bo 0!qc
;;ooLLLLooco d)
P
-;6aux
!LY
LL

..i .'i od
tp

C6CaE
Oo-OOz*,2 &oxoPXPO
o\J6
.9 c .or Z.
.t of oJ
L-LC
-LTLijoio)(o'E(oYEbE #
c liL o,o;o)-cL.rLP
f;-f-!(J1:(.)

9h.=Ea,)oso.2.t o,E s5ES g'

E AE 9
.oE.u6
= o:t 0louo6q_qc
GL(Eni
uEuO-E:E dtuB --
!oJEa)

"E Pi .U

o-c,= .=
o(J cEce E
Oifc,psE p
Q.! * cL0J o 0,1 0l(rL-Ccr
j.do rri

Ei s;E
Ei $EEH*qi
(Yl gf

1r')
F.l
C,r{n
o
rn

E RBit B

h Rodi; s
",R

niisr,oqc{oAc),rif"l oJ N\q)o9lo'+m cr')

o
b0
tr
l!

oI
o

G
T!

f.. cof.. (o
c) co
F,|

c,
rl

o
uoE-
EP0Jd

6iotr
o
l!

00
.::= o

Xi EE.fl Eo'g
ii 8aE
o uo'E .=
i: .E.94oroP:oEEi J'6'E slt'=of

q
3slt

.c
t!
L'

^rAoocd
dr-
r'{ o'l

:1

i etEx.=9i>
8 H.E E.it9e!(f{3

9ncnlJ)N,t).!<troooNq a dcd +,+Yoo(oNrrceqcn,.irn\'dri
<f cn i\

':t
()
t-
t-
oll
t=()

atr
(u
:lr_l
olel
oJl

til
9l
orl
til-:l
't; 

I

6
o
6

._(!
tu-E i:
2c oru(o 9

-6LoJcqo(EL
cO.E
(!- L
cbDoJiE.c !
LLCoJo fa9o
fPOEP Eo(u.94*E =6.0.. e

€p 6
.. L q L

=folLa P.s dtc3 LrOoXuz t ;

ooc'=
o
L
o

ll
E
o.)

00c
o

J

o
(u

'L-

G
E

c
q,
L
L

L)
:=

lb,
l-EI}loILlLlol-oIrlcl(o
l-lc
oo
*
c

'u-
(D
(u

0.)

qJ

C
o
!L
f
U

lqto

I.:
lo
l(!lu!lc
loc
o
G
E
o
si
tAt
o,l
sl

-ctl
.sl
=l(!l
PIolFI

AqE(u=:-
-59'5L'(,i{=E ;E H
o.Y(uooE s+!So E f .! g
c.A(Jo:E 3:&irci2ctrE E E€.EoE Erq.r

1r9=Iu6i E:EIEP+U9olcrtE9;i=';rucq-f,
cE.gF'g3gE5'-
Eot4:;=oia=,uo : ii#t!
o.=c(o.::f B EE,i
,E *Egii
!-os
o H[.trttc.6or';:f. e3Ef;gLa,p(L
o!:oc:o E€ -e tiI p3€:lc -= 5.sii(!(
cclPq;F'i;AEpuisO.Y>C'T eEPE!.ptr*tI e b9.s905 gEEr
trtr-EL.i, 3.EgE
6 .o E >;p EeElq9 ESFE.Lc'tobEc6(J6i E_ae{
.=o6F=

s t,IEas6BF:Eb5 x€*fi r! >..0 U 3 Y
or!:Eb9pEH I eeEEqE E +XEEb
:g po 9{ f; s b;; E-6;frg:E
:EA ;r H €; s g'!: E$ ;€ E s EP.e E'o e i E'; 

=tB EE qEeHE
t8 E; -€E€_HE
li ! E* s E E E Ei;s t'= #=E;el;* t; EgEtTJi: Es f;o; ; ryi;!il EE $gn HE
:Jo o: n4.c or Yl trTiEE E; n 3 €:E H'Ei:.= of E P 3 = n.Eqg a3 E E E.s e

;ii 5 Fq EE.E-rE
fiIi E 5E EPEEE
EEi 3 #E # :r E 5:

---=-_, 
i

--+-- i
\ri
\

Go
c
oz

Itlttr



---t

i

,;

!-9
o@d
9PL.-ob
ELoo-l,b
oo!EC
bD o)

,gEn 0,,
qPo(Uos6u1L(U
O. -c9POc
stAE
Nqm'E
dqod.8

!0J
-L

.(!@
,g .g c?
T' E' AIcsR
bbsr
J.Y;ccd.(E(o
co co oo

= 
....' c €oo_oc

cF-=
-U-O a
E VE (E'= 3; Ep-Pq
eL?-
0''l '9 o CJ

-.E EE 9o9oraj
pu.!

E fr-q 3vlav"L
9 bq .9
FPFC

L.-L

I bg :6 E5 g
o]oPP!.4!c

3 Hg s. E! -E .: atoiolFoo-b!=jJc(OC?€Ja]E E Ai gE E ,Eo ': o c Fco 9O O q.)
PCE6b5 .9 o
T HL E C
5 9; iib o
u=orci!

^E-g So ; '11O+

^a^(oO;J;Jo_\z
aq9o9l",c
o o > o; X (D-co
=P.=!-CP'tr.4'trE(!c.6?:fy.co

!g:tr-t=
aLNLC

U s x =€ 3 la
oHilH.oA{l=e=Go<lJ
.-g d ?do P bE e &.t= F E
6OgOu,=:L:L!T5F

H c orcg,t I L

= 
e.3.08 E IE 6 +E E n '.oqi (J F (J.- tr >!2 +- ;G= o_! '6 u'; " o c.) ii - 60) . olh (g : (oog c F\tr9d;trsfc o I or= : .

E b E[J:d H
: H SEE ig 5'
6EdPc:=,;(JO.c.=!i:G
qqvc;,,itJqE E 9EX v E

E E sEe ri E99.!r9.!=o-
&. &,f e=I: P
Fl N (nUE <l tr}

() sl cn <+ rr) !-lro st r.'o c.l m r.t
!! ^i 

txj c'j d 6i
!oiOtoN[\o-<++
rn F.- dco+

u0

'=
o
L
L
oo
Co
1l
OJ
f
(.,
U(ol
ul6l
oJlLl
oJl
EI
.t

>l

lq 91 (U
OOq
,-c-H? ot, j:g fiE ILV

T ; 8E P
:trcoi;

O-L
I;-colrOJ
h {i (tr.c !5 P bF 5
bno!9qc J cf c

'-e={jO
6 o -9, 'E(uocYo
-ooJOoboPu==i4 'i: io .c €(IJ - bo'; a
v- E €p 5.=o--LuF

HPE F?E3raFic>:L6,=foiX
d E 6 uz i z.-:!:= i=.ZE t

oO*9
i uoo',i^
X E g HE
3g* E".grn llo

Eq33hR
Hfroo8XS
cn\or.'\rmN

stq
H
st
oo

FINro$rn

o)o
Fjr'l(o
r.t
H

(o\oorl
O)
cn

(oq
(n
co(o
00

fno
+(\lo
oi
ao

rA
rJt
C;N
Ln

I

U}o
00c
t!
(-l

o
f
(!

':.!r

o
boE:
E9XFoa
c>u0(,
O,)E
oll.

c) cofO Al;r\o
!,) Nst cn

n\
i"gi
.J
I\
,-|

EO

.=t oJce-cEE6-ltr!o
^COoEsaEo uo'i .=
LF^O*.=.=5
boPT,.o
cJ'6'6 g.Q

EO;
6
3

-9t!
t
l!
I

f\*9i 90.E^
Y,=Oitr!,r'! c 1,) L o
tf, o c Q'=

3 Ef H E

(.'l

o
(n
fn

IA
o

o
u0c
g
c
l!c

E
o

o

=lt
G

G
oF

j,)
,{
rc

(,
t!
IE

(n^
o 9.1'trHE;J
tU t/l
L(U
rgo
;g'E
oo

tL!'.o
130tLo
ha

U,,J

r!!
iJGru-
!a.=

i!H
E ru.7
Or-E

=|-- c
trs-.-
5.!t Ig+'l
!!loo::trRil 6
:+.-
Eit 3

i
t
I

i
I

-t\_f 
\.\\
\\

t
I

t^
o,

o cg
c
o

c
tl
G
C

@
N
sl(r)
<l
N



lndosolar limited
Notes to the Financiar statenrents For The year Ended 31 March 2019
(all amounts in Rupees in Lakrr, Unress otherrwise stated)

44 Use of estimates and iudtgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition ,and measurement principles of lndAS requires management to rnake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets andliabilities and disclosure tf crcntingent liabilities at the date of the finanr:ial statements and the results ofoperations during the rellorting periorl end. Although these estimates arr-. based upon management,s bestknowledge of current evtlnts and actions, historical experience and other factors, including expect;ltions offuture events that are believed to be reetsonable, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimatesand underlying assumptions are revir-'wed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates arerecognized in the period irr which the estimate is revisedif the revisio,n affects only that period, or in the periodof the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

l\ Significant Judgements in applying accounting poticies

The iudgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below), that the Company has macle in theprocess of applying its accounting policies and that have a significant r:ffect on the amounts recognized in thesefinancial statements pertain to:

(i) Determination as to whether optionally convertible Cumutative Redeemable preference shares(occRPs) issued by the company is a financial tiability, equity or a compound/hybrid financialinstrument in ternrs of lnd AS 32 and lnd AS 109:

As part of the Debl: Settlement l\greement pursuant to One time Settlement (OTS) with Union Bank of
lndia ('Bank'), the i3ompany has issued 1% optionally convertible cumulative Redeemable preference
Shares (OCCRPS) w hicl'r are redeemable in L5 quarterly installments commencing from 30.06.21124 and
ending on 31.03.2028 in lieu of the conversion of part of the loan anrounting to Rs. 20,700.00. ln caseof an event of derfault by the company in timely repayrn,ent/reclemption as defined in the said
Agreement and ther company's failure to remedy/correct the clefault rruithin 60 days of default, the Bank
has a right to convt:rt the prefertlnce shares into equity at a Conversion price, being higher of pirr value
and market value of the equity share in accordance with SEBI formula,

The occRPS is con:;idered a contingent convertible preference shares which means it is an instrument
that is convertible, at the option of the holder, only on the occurrencr3 of a contingent event outside of
the control of the holder or the issuer. lf the contingent event occurs then the holder has the option,
but not the obligation, to convelt. lf the contingent event does not occur, then the instrument will be
settled in cash at rrraturity/due dates.

lf a contingent sel:tlenlent prolrision is regarded as outsidr: the crcntrol of the issuing entity, the
instrument is classified as a liability by the issuer. lf a contingent settlement provision is reganded as
within the control of tlre reporting entity, the instrument will be classified as equity, provided that it
has no other features requiring ills classification as a liability and that the contingent settlement event
is also outside the c:ontrol of the holder.
ln the aforesaid case, the conting;ent settlement event is Event of defilult by the company which is not
within the issuer's ithe Companlr's) control and the exercise of the conversion option would rr:sult in
the exchange of a varia ble numbrer of the issuer's own equity iinstruments.
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!ndosolar timited
Notes to the Financiar statenrents For The year Ended 31 March 2019(all amounts in Rupees in Lakh, Unless Otherwise Stated)

(ii)

The Company, the issruer of th'e instrument does not have the unconditional right to avoid cleliveringcash or another linancial asset (or otherwise to settle it in such ,a way that it would be a financialliability)' Accordirtgly, the management has concluded that it is a financial liability of the company.

Gain/loss on initiral recognitiorr and
measurement of OCCRpS:

The fair value of thesel preference shares (occRPs) at initial measurement is computed as the presentvalue of all futurr: cash paymelnts discounted based on discounting rate using the rate of interestapplicable on the remaining loarns by the bank. The difference betu/een the fair value and transactionamount at initial rnear;urement has been recorded as a gain in the statement of profit and loss, as thefair value has been r:omputedl based on valuation techniques, vyhich uses data from observablemarkets' Significarrt jurcgement is involved in assessing whether ail the data used for valuation has beenderived from obsttrvable markerts and it has been determined that use of certain unobservable data(minor adjustmenl:s to observabrle data to match the term, interest riate, credit risk and other factors ofpreference sharesl in these valuations are insignificant to the entire initial gain. Accordingly, thre entireinitial gain on initia I metasurement has been recognized upfrorrt as Gain on modification of loan (treated
as extinguishment) to the staternent of profit and loss.

Eligibility of capital suhsidy:

ln the matter of tht: company's claim for eligibility of capital subsidy urnder slp scheme of Govt. r:f lndia,the special Leave petition (sLP) filed by the Department of Electronics and tnformation Teclhnology
(DElr) against the order of the Hon'ble High court of Delhi har; been clismissed by the Hon,ble supreme
court vide its order datr:d Augusl25,2077. Dlr has since initiated the process of appraisal of the subsidy
claim of the Comp;rny.

According to lnd Ali 20: Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance;
Governmentgrant:;, inr:luding non-monetarygrants atfairvalue, shallnot be recognized untilthere is
reasonable assurarrce that:
(a) the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
(b) the grants will Lre received.

As the appraisal of subsidy claim is still pending, the management, in the absence of the reas;onable
assrrrance, has not recognized the claim for capital subsidy in accordernce with lnd AS- 20.

Going concern:

The Company has c;ontinued to incur significant losses in the current year resulting in further c.rosion
of its net worth. The Company hias a negative net worth amounting to Rs. 9g14g.49 as on 31st March
2019. The Companll's current lialcilities exceeds the current assets by Rs. 121451.53 as on 3Lst March
2019' The Compary's term loan payable to various lender banks become non-performing assets.
Further, ors scheme approved by Union Bank of lndia has been revoked. These conditions/factors raise
significant doubt ah,out the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

(l .1

(iii)

(iv)
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the Financiar staternents For The year Ended 3r March 2019(allamounts in Rupees in Lakh, Urnless othr-'rwise Stated)

The company is under corporalie lnsolvency Resolution process (clRp) under lnsolvency and Bankruptcycode' lts affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Rersolution professional app,ointed bythe Hon'ble NCL I New Delhi v'ide its order dated 12 April 2019 urnder the provisions of ther code aslnterim Resolution Professional. and subsequently as per section 22 of the code as ResolutionProfessional of lrdosolar Limited' lnvitation ftr expression of interest has been issued by ResolutionProfessionalon 03'07'2019 as ia result of which two Resolution plans has been received by him whichare under consideration.
considering the itbor"e and in expectation of the successl'ul outcome of the above proposals. The

Iil:fiT:lt.believes 
and has concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts,on soins

The financial staterments do not include any adjustments relating to tthe recoverability and clas:;ificationof carrying amoullts of the assets and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should theCompany be unab,le to continue as a going concern.

(v) leasehold iand:
The company has entered into an arrangement for lease of land from government entity. silgnificantjudgement is involved in assessing whether such arrangement is in the nature of finance or operatinglease' ln making such an assessment, the Company considers various factors which includes,whetherthe present value of ntinimum lease payments amount to at least substantially all of the fair value oflease assets, renewal terms, purchase option, sub-lease oprtions etc. Based on evaluation of abovefactors, lease is evaluated forthe purpose of treating in the nature of finance lease.

B. Key sources of estimation
uncertainty
The following are the key itssunrptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertaintyat the end of the reportirg period that may have a significant risk of caus;ing a material adjustment to thecarrying amounts of assets ancl liabilities; within the next financial yearr :

(i) Impairment of trarle rr:ceivabtes:
The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on lifetirre expected credit loss based on aprovision matrix. t.ifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result ,l,rom all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The provision matrix ta kes into
account historical t:redit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and the rates userc in the
provision matrix.

(ii) Export Obligations/ Net Foreign Exchange Earning (NFE) :

Being an Export orlented unit, the company needs to achiever positiv,e NFE during a period of 10 years
from the start of comrnercial production. Till date the Company has spent Rs. 190,962.43 in foreign
currency for Raw l\4aterial consumption, stores & spares and Expenses in foreign currency including
amortization of all imported Plant and Machinery and the company has earned foreign currency
equivalent to Rs.210,102.81. as per para 6.9(f)of FTP resulting into positive NFE Rs. 19,140.3g as on
March 31, 2019 r,vithout considering amortization of imported plant and machinery, prencling
installation /commissioning (disclosed as cwlP). ln case the Company also amortizes value of Line-c till
date (commercial production is yet to start) the company's Nf:E will become negative to the extent Rs.
29,624.59.

d"t
i
\
\

rr,
A_-..-- 

.r
(. _-.-' l:r . 

:

,,,



lndosolar [imited
Notes to the Financiar statenrents For The year Ended 31 March 2019(allamounts in Rupees in Lakr, Unress otherwise Stated)

(iii) lmpairment of property plant and equipment including
under installatiorr:

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plantand equipment lo determine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered animpairment loss' f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in orderto determine the externt of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amo Jnt is the higtrer of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. value in use is usuallydetermined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves managementestimates on ant cipated comrrodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and rergulatoryenvironment, discrount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changesin the above-menrionr:d factors;courd impact the carrying varue of arssets.

ln respect of Property, Plant anrc Equipment (PPE) including under installation (disclosed underr cwtp),the management ltas performecl an assessment of impairment of carrying value of ppE. The assessmenthas been done tak ing nto consideration the market value of assets determined by using the ValuationReport of valuer' The value used is Gross Value calculated by valuer, As per such assessment, themanagement has deterrmined rr:coverable value of the assets and has recognized an impairrnent lossof Rs' 22857'99 in thr: value of Plant and Machinery, Rs. 1904.99 in the value of Building and Rs.18056'14 lakh in tre carrying varlue of Property, Plant and Equipment (cwlp) during the finan,cial year2018-19.

Ciarrying Value
as on 30-09-

2018

Factory

Non- Factory

Carrying
Value

5788.20

Lt84.7lt

Market Value

4206.89

851.11

lmpairmr:nt

i581.31

323.68

Total
6972.95' 5068.00 :1904.99

Ciarrying Value
a:; on 30-09-
2018
Plant &
Mlachinery

CapitalWork in
Progress

Carrying
Value

31901.34

26354.80

Market Value

9043.35

8298.65

lmpairmernt

22t.857 "99

18i056.14

Total
58256.13 17342.0O 40914.13
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the Financiar staternents For The year Ended 31 March 2019(all amounts in Rupees in Lakh, Unless Otherwise Stated)

(iv)

(v)

(vi) Claims, provisions ancl Contingent liabilities:

The company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. wfhere anoutflowof funds i:; believed to be probable and a reliabte estimate rcf the outcome of the dispute canbe made based orr management's assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevantexternaladvice, mana[]ement provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are b,y naturecomplex and can take number of years to resolve and can invol've estimation uncertaint\/. Theseestimates could cltan6;e substantially over time as new facts emerge and each dispute progresses.
lnformation about such litigatiorrs is provided in notes to the financial statements.

(vii) Deferred Tax:

ln assessing the rearlizability of deferred tax assets the management of the company estimates lvhetherthe company will t:arn sufficienll taxable profit in future pe-riods. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon thr-'generation of future taxabl: income during the periods in which thetemporary differen ces become cleductible.

The company did rot recognize deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carryforwards, unatrsorbed
tax depreciation carrry forwards and others, as there are maiterial uncertainties and the future profit
streams are not ye1: prc,bable to r:laim set off.

Unabsorbed tax depreciation can be claimed for an infinite period and the business losses can becarried forward for a perriod of g years as per tax regurations.

I

e\r-

Fair value measurements of financial instruments;

ln estimating thr: fair value c'f a financial asset or a financial liability, the company use!; market-observable data to the extent it is available. where active market quotes are not available, themanagement apPlies valuation techniques to determine the fair varue of financial instrumr-,nts. This

il:ffir*".',X:?l?j,tlltut, 
t""ptions and judsemenrs consi:stent with how market participants

Actuarial Valuation:

The determination ofcompany's liability towards defined benefit obligation viz. gratuity and otherlong-term emplolrqs lcenefit obligation viz. long term complnrra.o absences to emproyees is madethrough indepenclent actuarial valuation including determination o,f amounts to be recognizr-.d in thestatement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensiv'e income. such valuation depend uponassumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevantfactors such as supply and dtlmand fr.torc in the emplclyment market. lnformation about suchvaluation is provicled in notes to the financial statements.

(li '-.\
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the Financiarstatements For The year Ended 31 March 201g(all amounts in Rupees in Lar,:h, Lrnress otherwise stated)

(viii) Usefut lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibte assets :

As described in the significant accounting policies, the management determines and also reviews theestimated usefu lives of property, plani .no .qriprent and intangible assets at the end of eachreporting period' such lives are dependent upon .n .rr"rrrn"nt of both the technical life of the assetsand also their lil':ely economic life, based on rrrio*internar and external factors includinlg relativeefficiency and ollerating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the bestinformation available to the management.

45 Corporate tnsolvency Re:;olution proces:

As per order of Hon'ble N cLT New Delhi dated 12 April 2019 under the provisions of rnsolvency and Bankruptcycode' the company is under corporate lnsolvency Resolution process (clRp). lts affairs, business and assets arebeing managed by the Resolution Profelssional. As per the code the Rp has to receive, collate and reconcile allthe claims submitted by the creditors of the company. such .irim can be admitted by the Rp during rhe crRp,till the approval of a resolt'ttion plan by the c.o.c. The Rp has verified and admitted the claims submitted by thecreditors against the com cany as per the code. The ,rrrrrytf claims filled by financial creditor, opr:rationalcreditors and employees itnd ildmitted by resolution professional as on r.1 December 2019 are as follows:a) Financial Creditors: Rs. 2,13,7 9!.49
(including Bank of Baroda: Rs. 25918'7t1, corporation Bank: Rs. 3g5ir6.4g, ARCIL: Rs. 4gg74,13, Union Bank oflndia: Rs, 98322.09)
b) Operational Creditors: Ils. 4,3G0.36
c) Employees*: Rs. 256.g1
* A litigation has been filed by 49 employees of the company for a claim of tRs. 3gg.4g with the Labor court atNoida (UP)' However, mol;t of the said employees has aiso iil"o thui, claim with Resolution professic,nal (Rp)which was admitted by RP on tnerits and details of which are available on wr:bsite of company.Pending finalization of resolution plan, the impact of such claims if any have not been considererj in thepreparation of the financia I startement.
Noncurrent and current assets are discllosed in the balance sheet at their carrying value, however, s1nce thecompany is under clRP, it is not possible to derive at which value assets can lbe realized.
RP has sent mails and letterrs frlr recovety to trade receivables. However, most of them had not responded orthey have been rejected the claims on them.

46 Non adherence of IND AS
A.) Due to insufficient staff and non_availability

requirements could nct be adhered:
IND AS 19 Employee Be nefits
No provision has been made for gratuity as on 31st March 2019. Howevrer, gratuity has been provided onthe basis of actuarial va ruation done as on 30th september 201g.

B.) No provision for earnecl leave has been made during the year:
Disclosures regarding clefined benefit gratuity plan, their assets, sensitivity analysis, maturity pr,ofile ofdefined benefit obligatlon, expected contribution for the next annual reporting period and other relatedinformation could not be provided.

of information, lFollowirrg IND AS and their disclosures
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lndosolar Limited
Notes to the Financial statemerrts For The year Ended 31 March 2o19
(ail amounrs tn Rupees in Lal<h, Llnless Otherwise Stated)

C.) IND AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates:
Unrealized Foreign Exchange gain,/loss have not been booked on foreign creditors and CapitalAclvances

D.) IND AS 37 provisions, contingent r.iabilities and contingent Assets:
company is in defaull of various company law and secretarial non cornpliances which can lead 1lo variouspenaltiesundervariot:slaws. Thes,epenaltieshasnotbeenquantifiedandprovidedinthebooks

E.) lnd AS 107 Financial lnstruments and lnd AS 113 Fair Value Measuremr:nts:
Complete Disclosures for iabove IND AS has not been provided.

Significant Non - Adiusting Events aftr:r the Batance sheet Date: The company is under corporate lnsolvencyResolution Process (clRP) vicle order of Hon'ble NCLT New Delhi dated 12 April 2019 under the provisions oflnsolvency and Bankrupt,:y Cr:de. (Refer point No.45)

Note 1to 48 form an intel3ral part of the balance sheet of the company.

47

48
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